
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 21, 2022 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS

4. NEW BUSINESS
a. FY21 Audit (FORVIS)
b. FY2021-22 Financial Update (Finance)
c. Use of Public Utilities Capital Reserve to fund Capital Improvement Projects (Public Utilities)
d. Goldsboro Tourism Council Annual Report (Chairperson)
e. Commission on Community Relations and Development Annual Report (Chairperson)
f. Herman Park Center and T.C. Coley Center Update (Parks and Recreation)
g. Boards and Commissions Vacancy Discussion (City Clerk)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Rev. David Elliott, St. James AME Zion Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of November 7, 2022
B. Minutes of the Joint Meeting of the Goldsboro City Council, Wayne County Commissioners and Local

Municipalities November 1, 2022 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
C. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Wilton T. Bailey as an Employee of The City 

of Goldsboro for More Than 24 Years 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING
D. HOME ARP Funding (Mayor/Community Relations/WBD Consultants)
E. SU-13-22 Accessory Dwelling – East side of W. New Hope Rd., located between the intersection of Cuyler

Best Rd. and S. Harding Dr. (Planning) 
F. SU-14-22 Fly Buy Auto, LLC. (Used Car Sales) – Northeast side of US Hwy 70 E (Warren Supply) (Planning)
G. SU-15-22 C.A.L.M. Properties & Investments, LLC (Triplex) – Corner of Wayne Ave. and Sycamore St.

(Planning) 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
H. Purchase of Lithium Powered Golf Carts and Upgrades to Golf Cart Storage Building (Golf)
I. Operating Budget Amendment FY22-23 (Finance)
J. Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 412 E. Walnut Street to Oliver Design Group, LLC

(Finance) 
K. Edward Byrne Justice Grant (Police)
L. Ordinance Amendment – “Administrative Code” (Police)
M. Goldsboro Christmas Parade – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
N. Set Public Hearing - Non-Contiguous Annexation Petition – Harry and Mollie, LLC. (Lot 12) - Located on

the north side of N.C. Secondary Road No. 1758 off E. US Hwy. 70 between N. Oak Forest Rd. and E. Ash St. 
Ext. (Planning)  

Moved to Items Requiring Individual Action 

Moved to Items Requiring 
Individual Action 



2 

O. Dissolving the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee and Amending the City of Goldsboro Code of 
Ordinances (City Clerk) 

P. Departmental Monthly Reports 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION
Q. Ordinance Amendment – “Panhandling” (Police)

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS
R. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Charles Ginn as an Employee of The City of

Goldsboro for More Than 18 Years 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XIII. CLOSED SESSION

XIV. ADJOURN

Removed



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Board Presentation-
Preliminary Audit Results

City of Goldsboro / November 21, 2022

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

w.s. item a



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Audit Matters

2

 We are in the process of auditing the financial statements of the City of Goldsboro as of June 
30, 2021.

 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and perform an audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance the financials are free from material misstatement.

 We expect the audit procedures to be complete and the report to be ready in time to present to 
the City Council at the December 19th meeting.

 Services Performed:
- Audit of the 2021 basic financial statements
- Compliance audit in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

General Fund – Fund Balance Summary

3

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Total fund balance - General Fund 13,646,593$      12,274,765$      10,787,621$      9,084,558$        10,967,014$      

Less:
Nonspendable fund balance (564,291)            (606,124)            (187,925)            (257,212)            (255,407)            
Restricted fund balance (5,270,374)         (4,998,215)         (6,313,654)         (5,357,362)         (5,387,946)         

Fund balance available for appropriation 7,811,928$        6,670,426$        4,286,042$        3,469,984$        5,323,661$        

Total expenditures and routine transfers 37,025,363$      40,745,539$      42,168,335$      41,642,852$      38,503,699$      

Available fund balance as a percentage of
 expenditures and transfers to other funds 21.1% 16.4% 10.2% 8.3% 13.8%



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

General Fund – Fund Balance Summary

4

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $45,000,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

GENERAL FUND

Fund balance available for appropriation Total expenditures and routine transfers



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Utility Fund

5

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues (budgetary basis) 16,490,631$      17,021,651$      17,081,402$      19,372,715$      20,082,941$      

Expenditures (budgetary basis) 16,158,944$      19,852,179$      19,380,053$      18,747,440$      15,600,590$      

Working capital* 9,089,469$        7,836,983$        2,637,200$        4,183,341$        7,636,682$        

* - Working capital consists of current assets (excluding restricted cash) minus current liabilities



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Utility Fund

6

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

UTILITY FUND

Revenues (budgetary basis) Expenditures (budgetary basis)

Working capital*



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Compliance 
Reporting

7

 Report on Compliance for each Major State Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform 
Guidance.

 Major Federal Programs
 66.458 – Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State 

Revolving Funds
 21.019 – Coronavirus Relief Fund

 Major State Programs
 DOT-4 – State Street-Aid to Municipalities (“Powell 

Bill”)

No compliance findings, or findings related to internal 
controls over compliance have been noted during our 
testing of any of the above major programs.



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Assurance  /  Tax  /  Advisory

forvis.com

Questions?



FY2021-22 FINANCIAL UPDATE

Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director

November 7, 2022

w.s. item b



General Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

2

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Incr/(Decr over 

Prior Year
Taxes 18,009,270$             17,280,497$        728,774$              
Sales Tax 11,312,744                10,643,638          669,106                
Refuse 3,840,460                  3,847,884            (7,425)                   
Shared Services 3,207,840                  3,046,957            160,883                
Utility Franchise 2,621,684                  2,662,169            (40,485)                 
Other Federal & State Rev. 1,919,146                  1,703,286            215,860                
Debt 3,268,981                  -                         3,268,981            
Powell Bill 1,024,644                  868,303                156,342                
Golf 634,191                      601,863                32,327                  
Permits 417,336                      381,515                35,821                  
Paramount 446,305                      164,707                281,598                
Interest 13,608                        6,718                     6,890                     
Other Revenues 1,335,048                  1,480,397            (145,349)               
Total 48,051,257$             42,687,934$        5,363,323$          



General Fund Collections
FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual

3

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections % of Budget

Taxes 17,835,244$           18,009,270$           100.98%
Licenses & Permits 378,450                   417,336                    110.28%
Revenues Other Agencies:

Local Option Tax 9,997,261                11,312,744              113.16%
Utility Franchise Tax 2,871,676                2,621,684                91.29%
ABC Revenues 95,000                      445,060                    468.48%
Beer & Wine Taxes 149,770                   135,558                    90.51%
Powell Bill 830,800                   1,024,644                123.33%
Other Agency Revenues 3,283,656                1,338,528                40.76%

Service Fees from UF 3,207,840                3,207,840                100.00%
Charges for Services 5,091,718                5,562,713                109.25%
Capital Returns 3,484,458                3,485,677                100.03%
Other Revenue 166,601                   490,202                    294.24%
Fund Balance Appropriated 156,633                   -                             0.00%
Total General Fund Revenues 47,549,107             48,051,257              101.06%



Stormwater Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

and
Budget to Actual FY2021-22

4

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections Collections

Stormwater Fee 1,575,000$                1,621,116$             102.93%
Other Revenues 268,751                     280,716                   104.45%
Appropriated Fund Balance 640,000                     -                                0.00%
Stormwater Fund Totals 2,483,751$               1,901,832$            76.57%

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Incr/(Decr 

over Prior Year
Stormwater Fee $1,621,116 $1,596,299 $24,817
Loan Proceeds 267,551           -                         $267,551
Other Revenues 13,165              9,634                $3,531
Total $1,901,832 $1,605,933 $295,899



Utility Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

5

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Incr/(Decr) 

over Prior Year
Current Sewer 9,266,384$              9,654,752$           (388,369)$            
Current Water 7,570,213                7,685,150             (114,937)              
Other Charges for Services 1,506,861                1,421,628             85,233                 
Transfers In (FEMA related) 292,949                   1,388,182             (1,095,233)           
Miscellaneous 774,987                   722,105                52,882                 
Late Payment Fees 399,065                   332,549                66,516                 
Other Federal & State Revenue 250,125                   115,686                134,439               
Other Capital Returns 115,000                   72,562                  42,438                 
Compost Fees 50,861                     62,718                  (11,857)                
Tap Fees 47,914                     35,150                  12,764                 
Investment Earnings 16,330                     6,584                    9,746                   
Other Revenues -                           
Total 20,290,689$       21,497,067$    (1,206,379)$     



Utility Fund Collections
FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual

6

Adjusted Actual YTD %
Budget Collections Collections

Charges for Services:
Current Water Charges 7,321,707$           7,570,213$           103.39%
UF-SJAFB 1,226,771             1,444,079             117.71%
Current Sewer Charges 8,823,652             9,266,384             105.02%
Late Payment/Svc. Fees 326,000                401,632                123.20%
Applied Deposits 127,000                49,322                  38.84%
Reconnections Fees 6,700                    9,199                    137.30%
Water/Sewer Taps 31,000                  47,914                  154.56%
Compost Revenues 51,000                  50,861                  99.73%
BFP Fees/Insufficient Ck Penalty 2,000                    1,694                    84.69%

Total Charges 17,915,830$         18,841,298$         105.17%

Capital Returns & Misc. Revenue
Investment Earnings 8,000$                  16,330$                204.13%
Other Misc. Revenue 59,872                  114,998                192.07%

Total Capital Returns 67,872$                131,328$              193.49%
Other Revenues 3,356,532             1,318,061             39.27%
Appropriated Fund Balance 397,761                -                             0.00%
Utility Fund Revenue Totals 21,737,995$         20,290,688$         93.34%



Downtown MSD & 
Occupancy Tax Collections 

Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

7

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Incr/(Decr) 

over Prior Year
Downtown MSD
Taxes 97,883$              94,941$           2,942$              
Investment Earnings 127                     60                    67                     
Other Revenues
Total 98,010$              95,001$           3,009$              

Occupancy Tax
Occupancy Tax Collections 937,143$            859,799$         77,344$            
Wayne Co. Reimbursement per agreement 170,797              174,376           (3,579)               
Investment Earnings/Misc. Revenues 561                     356                  205                   
Other Revenues 7,823                  8,923               (1,100)               
Total 1,116,324$         1,043,454$      72,870$            



Downtown MSD & 
Occupancy Tax Collections

FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual

8

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections Collections

Downtown MSD
Taxes 95,174$              97,883$           102.85%
Investments/Misc. -                      127                  -
      Total 95,174$              98,010$           102.98%

Occupancy Tax
Occupancy Tax - Civic Ctr. 686,463$            749,849$         109.23%
Occupancy Tax - T & T 183,428              187,295           102.11%
County of Wayne Occ Tx 175,975              170,797           97.06%
Other Revenues 35,931                8,384               23.33%
Appropriated Fund Balance 150,000              -                   0.00%
      Total 1,231,797$         1,116,324$      90.63%



Actual Collections
Comparison Actual Current & Prior (unaudited)

9

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Incr/(Decr) 
over Prior 

Year

General Fund 48,051,257$    42,687,934$    5,363,323$   

Utility Fund 20,290,688       21,497,066       (1,206,378)    

Downtown Development 98,010               95,001               3,009              

Occupancy Tax 1,116,324         1,043,454         72,870           
-                  

Stormwater Fund 1,901,832         1,605,933         295,899         

Total 71,458,111$    66,929,388$    4,528,723$   



Summary –
FY2021-22 Budget to Actual Expenditures

10

Budget Actual
Under/(Over) 

Budget
General Fund 47,549,107$             40,445,335$        7,103,772$          
Utility Fund 21,737,995                14,926,001          6,811,994            
Stormwater Fund 2,483,751                  1,857,437            626,314                
Downtown MSD Fund 95,174                        73,625                  21,549                  
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,231,797                  1,126,972            104,825                
Total 73,097,824$             58,429,370$        14,668,454$        



Fund Balance Appropriations
FY 2021-22

11

General Fund $ 156,633
PO rollover

Utility Fund $ 397,761
PO rollover, AIA & MRFS grants $6K

Downtown MSD $            0    
None

Occupancy Tax Fund $  150,000
Musco Lighting $110K & Advertising $40K

Stormwater Fund $  640,000
Stormwater Project-Assessment (CDM) _________

Total $1,344,394



FY2021-22 Net Operating Results
(Modified Accrual - unaudited)

12

Budget Actual
Under/(Over) 

Budget
General Fund

Revenues 47,549,107$         48,051,257$         (502,150)$              
Expenditures 47,549,107            40,445,335            7,103,772              

General Fund - Net -$                        7,605,922$            7,605,922$            
Utility Fund

Revenues 21,737,995$         20,290,689$         1,447,307$            
Expenditures 21,737,995            14,926,001            6,811,994              

Utility Fund - Net 0$                           5,364,688$            5,364,688$            
Stormwater Fund

Revenues 2,483,751$            1,901,832$            581,919$               
Expenditures 2,483,751              1,857,437              626,314                 

Stormwater Fund - Net -$                        44,395$                 44,395$                 
Downtown MSD Fund

Revenues 95,174$                 98,010$                 (2,836)$                  
Expenditures 95,174                   73,625                   21,549                   

Downtown MSD Fund - Net -$                        24,385$                 24,385$                 
Occupancy Tax Fund

Revenues 1,231,797$            1,116,324$            115,472$               
Expenditures 1,231,797              1,126,972              104,825                 

Occupancy Tax Fund - Net -$                        (10,647)$                (10,647)$                

Total - Net Change all Funds 0$                           13,028,743$         13,028,742$         



Questions? 



w.s. c



Goldsboro Tourism Council

Dustin Pike, Chairperson

11/21/22

w.s. item d



How Occupancy Tax Works
• 6% Occupancy Tax in the City limits.
• 5% is remitted to the City and 1% is remitted to the County.
• Occupancy Tax Funds:

– Tourism Assets
– Tourism Staff & Office Operations
– Marketing of Goldsboro/Wayne County to Tourist
– Promotion of Tourism Related Events & Activities

• Tourism doesn’t use General Tax Funds

11/17/2022 2



Tourism at a Glance for FY21-22
• $939,388 of Occupancy Taxes – City
• $374,555 of Sales Tax – County & City
• $299,095 of Real Property Tax – City
• $172M In Visitor Spending in 2021
• Tourism Employs Over 1,119 People

11/17/2022 3



Tourism Event Highlights FY 21-22
• USTA Tennis Tournament
• Kepner Cup
• NC Lax Fest (Boys & Girls Tournaments)
• Freedom Fest
• Goldsboro/Dillard Alumni Weekend
• US Quidditch Mid Atlantic Regional Championship

11/17/2022 4



Tourism in FY22-23
• Aggressive Revenue Projections

– Ahead of Collection Schedule YTD

• Airshow in 2023
• All FY21/22 Events Returning for FY22/23

11/17/2022 5



Commission on Community 
Relations and Development 

w.. item e



 Our Mission
To act as an advisory body to the City Council:

To enhance community 
harmony.

Go above and beyond 
to promote awareness 
of Goldsboro’s growing 

multiculturalism. 

Facilitate community 
dialogue by having 

meetings and 
community events 

throughout 
neighborhoods.

Organize coalitions to 
listen to community 
issues and concerns.

The Council appointed 
Commission on 

Community Relations 
and Development will 
also serve as a citizen 
input mechanism in an 
advisory capacity to 
the City Council for 
programs funded 

through Community 
Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) and 
HOME Investment 

Partnership (HOME) 
grant funds.



Our Members

We are a diverse group of 11 members with a like passion 
to serve our community.

 Two of our members that serve as liaisons are our department       
Director, Felecia Williams and our City Councilmember, 
Hiawatha Jones. 

 The body of advisors have backgrounds in:

 Social Services

 Education

 Military 

 Small Business Owner

 NPO 

 Correctional Facility Staff

 Insurance Broker



 2022 Accomplishments
By-Laws have been revised:

Align with local government. 

Define how we will use subcommittees if needed. 

Actively involved in CBDG action plan and have a w.i.p timeline for next year. 

Attending Council Meetings to stay connected to current action items. 

Reached out to local Council, Mayor and City Manager individually to see how we 
can communicate and support their vision.

Held community events such as Suicide Prevention vigil at City Hall steps.

Sharing community affairs such as Literacy Connection Community Fair, World 
Mental Health Day, National Night Out, Christmas Parade, Conversation for Black 
Women, MLK celebration and more. 

Bringing in Subject Matter Experts to form ADHOC committees as needed. 

Develop a framework for affordable housing working within HUD & ARP guidelines.

Promoting more inclusiveness by reaching out to community leaders and 
leveraging local resources such as Chamber of Commerce and church leaders. 



What does 2023 look like?

We will have clear, accurate and 
measurable goals in 2023

Lean in and connect with the 
community on several levels; with 

the goal to gain trust, get more 
feedback and more participation in 
surveys as well as assure as much as 
possible everyone is fully informed 

on current happenings and how they 
can share their voice and leverage 

economic opportunities.

Cultural Fair Community poster and essay 
contests at local schools.

More collaborations with Seymour 
Johnson AFB such as MLK day and 
learning how they play a role in 

affordable housing. 

Having high level professionals 
coming to open meetings to present 

in key initiatives. 

Assure we as a unit are fully aware 
of local government and how they 

work. 

Continue to learn and utilize best 
practices while working together 
and communicating issues to the 

communities.

Assure there is a clear path of 
communication between the 

communities and council. 
As much as possible make sure each 
diverse set has their voice heard. 

Work to stay ahead of potential 
issues that can have a negative 

impact on our city.



Thank the City Council, City 
Manager and the Mayor for 
trusting us and allowing us 

latitude to continue to serve 
the communities and City of 

Goldsboro.



fw.s.





u) 

d 

sgaSsa

a

e

x

a

U =' 4) `

o

OLim  I = 

v

ra

N

cN

EDp-
f

n

nn,

iE= €

eeyo

ai

p, 

j

S

O

a2

s•

w

e

g

Ili

E

9

N

Fn

o

cccz

o

U

0co0

W

l

y

Ca

p

m

C 

y

V] 

a 

o

co
u 

G

3

a

a? 

o

CZ

ami

W

U (

Jco
U

U

U

70

O

O

p

5

O

NNa

i

cc

Fa

CJ

It

o

00

UUUU

U

0

E~ 

aoi

0

u) 

d 

sgaSsa
a

e

x

a

U =' 
4) `

o

O

Lim  

I = 

v

ra

N

cN

E

Dp-f

n

nn,

iE= €

eeyo

ai

j

S

Vi ( Vi

a2

s•

w

e

g

Ili

E

9

oOIw

ofmIUala

Fa '
si,

ii

ani ¢

ii "

a

c

Lm O
j

1- 

V • 

it

3

7

7. - 

a. 

W

Q

N

o

N

Y35 .=

8

iBi
YC

O

4; 

N - 

eiZ

LL

Ln0

Item A



i

0

WLU
J
LLzczCU

N

w

rA

p

aid

za

uO

3

p

LLUz

Q

O

O

OEM

w

U

i

3

z

E

6

f

O

C

N

2

C

Q

O

m

3

w

i

f

O

a

p

o

ujW

Z

w

3

a

Oo

z

0c

3

w

a
DV

Ln

WLU
J
LLzczCU

N

Oz

rA

aid

4.

1

s

LLUz

Q

O

O

OEM

4. 

f

O

C

N

2

C

Q

Rr

i

Oz

Lnri0s

rA

4.

1

Q

O

O

OEM

4. 

N

C

N

bU

y

U

4r

bA

Ln

to

w

U

N

U

tH

Ucs

z

N

bA

yam„ 3

w

o

0

pyo . 

Q

Q) 

0

8

p

a -

C

00

E

O

X . 

OU

O

CO

oO

ct

m

cn

cn

00

r

U

CJ

cn

U • 

C

U  

U  

O

U

O

cn

Lnri0s



o  

UU

O

So

c 

O

CO

U

3

U

N

CU

UU • 

o

cn

C7

tin

x

Y

O

3

o

U

0Ln
O

N

t. 

O

v) 

a

O

U

CIO o

O

y

i

o  

121

U

dU

U

cn

0cC13

5

U

U

O

cn

Q

o

0

0

cz

44

H. 

O

U' 

U

pOp.., 

O

IN

KAI
a
O

wroRs

Lnrl0M



MdiZcz
r 

At

L

UR

RT



w

W; 

N

C

N

a

C-

4o

rN
Now'' 

k

s

QCD

O

Y. 

K

F

o -

2

N

2

w  

8

W

WO

s

0

u

QWrte-- JW

J Lvf- QN

D

O

O

mLL. 

g

5

Il 

gCa

Op

to

Dco

N

w

LnOy

a

s

8

E° 

Ftr

aygg
66

8

Fit

g

5

Il 

gCa

Op

to

kaE

C

p 

ag

ag

a 

F

8

a

gC

OE
lit. ligg8$ 

g$ 

8

Hi
qF

pz
pggfi

F€

B

gpp

a

r

a

x

C

ag

8

C

Y

H

0

z •° 

g

s

O

mi

tko

u

3u

8

d

C

m

F

F

V1

c

Z

v
Q. 

E

LnLU

a

eoc

W

v

2

d

O` 

i

P8

ad

m 

EIa n 

LnOy



CZ

U

U

cC «

3

O

O

cn

U

bA

U

O

U

o  

3 • 

U  

OUN

N

f

ri

Q, 

ca

y ' 

cc

3

M

cnCO

Q

y

N + 

U

cz

C', 

U

U

th

MC 

3

o ,!

cz

iy

p

U

O ' 

M 

O

aS

obj) ' 

a

CIJ ' 

En

OU

O

N

CZ

O

44- 

O

N

C4:,, 

v

p

UO
ca

N

y

rJ

rn

U

U5

3

5

4. 

Q. 

inrl0T:' 

lit

9

iii

d

r

M

a

u

a

i

iji

u

a

p

Lu

a

e

arE

Y

W

o01CO

g $ 

z- 

p

O

d

w

o

w

Q

Ca

8p

8

8

8

ag

A

S

a

s= 

Mgt

Y 

2

x

E

zay€ 

Z

o

I

oil

Jig

qbgqp

c

9rF

cr

tt

fie, 

Y • 

Fig

e8834 

a

EVs
g

H

aja{ 

I

g

3

U.
1

MO

ass
ego

a

g

c

N

O

CL

Q) 

C

ao

oD

s+. 

L

N

t

8 $

fla 

a

a

O

CD

H

aF

gHW' 

f

CZ

U

U

cC «

3

O

O

cn

U

bA

U

O

U

o  

3 • 

U  

OUN

N

f

ri

Q, 

ca

y ' 

cc

3

M

cnCO

Q

y

N + 

U

cz

C', 

U

U

th

MC 

3

o ,!

cz

iy

p

U

O ' 

M 

O

aS

obj) ' 

a

CIJ ' 

En

OU

O

N

CZ

O

44- 

O

N

C4:,, 

v

p

UOca

N

y

rJ

rn

U

U5

3

5

4. 

Q. 

inrl0
T:' 



03

4-
4C13. 

y

o

o +•' 

C;    

U '

G

O

N   •   

O

c 

U

p .•. 

O

k

O

0

0. • ° 

o ' ° ° 

abi

o

to

03

toOcts -
0

0 °

Ln

r:l

ill

o

o ° 

o. ,, 

Q. 

U

v

O

O

U

U

on

U

O

U

t+ 

co

O

E, .. 

C7

a) > 

a) 

ars

O

a . 

co

o

a °' 

03

W

cu

a) 

a) 

o

o

o

o

3 , 

U ,

r ; 

O

o

es%>

ca

U+ 

yUA
r  

O

cC

3

y, 

ID

c8

OU> 

d

a) . 

O

o

4-; 

vi

O

U

w

O

o

to ° 

b

v °'

ca

on

U" 

o

a) 

o ° 

3

U

o

U° 

Y

c ° 

ami

m ` . 

w

0

m

o

Q. ``'' 

03

a) 

y , 

O

o

C7

U

c

3

U

N

b

U° 

U

vi

v 

O

00

p > `

n

U

cd

m ( ° 

a)' 

O

ti

y

U

L. 

U

U

a) 

N

o

a, , . 

3

a 

o

a

a ; 

U 

o

O

U

U

O

U

p
l >, " 

s: 

p

N 

G

cm

bUD

ai

SU. 

bA °. 

to
a) -= .

fl ! 

N

v

U

r `

1," ' 

sti  

c 

O `- 

y

U

3

co

v

V) 

Q

r 

U

c 

O

a

U

U > • ,  " 

N  

Z

b

3 

O+ 

j, 

c 

bUD

p '

v ^" 

i. " 

O

v 

i

O" 

O

O

cC

O

cd + 

O

O . 

U

U

O

O

U

p „ 

o

y .

d

cC ,, . 

0. . 

a+ 

oo

cC

on

P. 

rn .  

o

b ,

w

b

a ` 

x .°° > 

o

U

ai

a

o ` 

d , 

o .°; 

b

o

o

a; . 

4'; 

a

i

c

o -

s 

C

U >, 

o . 

o

d

x

Y  .

fl

o

y

Jw

a.. 

b.. 

a) •.. 

o

xa) 

O0

co? 

Ca7

O°
A

ti

oO
U

Z +' 

U

7

3o
4a0

oaNy
U

o03 > 

U

A> '

O

O

0

m

O

O

U

N

O

N  

0

0

U

o ., 

cd

s: 

a) 

tw

0

a) 

a) •

y ' 

V

a) 

o

m

O

o

V

tV" y

C,

3, 

0. 

y

F+ 

i"
y

00 ,

V]" 

y

d

ami

A

b

x

0

0

0

0

Q

y . 

a

o

o ,_ 

a) 

O

i° 

a) 

O

O

o

O

O

O

a) 

a 

o

wo •

b

y

o

a

C13  .

o ? 

a

o .

d

E ° 

U

U

U

U

a

o

V

a) 

U

U >' 

a) 

cn

s," 

a) 

pp

N

a) '

C

U

a) 

U

W

t

cl

O'

O- 

X., 

ml

U

rA

O

bA

U

3O

id

YQ) 

G3
bq

i

o

o

crj

U ' 

U

cz

ril

a) .

O° 

O

W

o

o °

oO

O

to
C;

3

b=

c

U

U

1:

1

C

cd

i ; 

ta, 

O

w

3.Oo y. 

b

U

U

V

N

a) 

0

COW
U

0



Q) 

a 

o ` 

o

t

0

is

cd

c 

8` 

FrCI" — 

bD

7a '

D

w

Q

0 ' 

0  

i . 

O

4.
1

R! 

o ° 

o

0

4" 

0  .  

y

Is"

0

X

N   

C

0

O  

rn

cn

N

N

W

o

0

In $ .

0 

o

0

0 ° 

ct

cz

0. 

0

0

3

0

0 -

d

k `' 

an (

L) 

o

o

W

o '

ct

o

o° ^

o

o

o ° 

U

o

Wp

a •

04ani
ti

bA .., 

U

L: 

b

y

abi °

r' ° 

o

y

3

a

U 

s

p

d °

g° 

ai ° 

o° 

o

y ,

040, 
b 

E

oN

X40°°° 

0' 

an

x

o ,- 

O

a , 

O

O

o ° 

y

a 

O° 

dA

a 

b •

r3

3

U

Y

o

N -

O

O

a)

o

x

N

U

y

co '

d1. 
0

V

N

N °

Q) 

jM4

0

N

9  

Ca

N     

O   

Q, 

U

r. . 

04 • 

p

4

04  '

C

c

j '

C

ytr

f
r" 

V

b " . + +' 

p

N

b

cC

O

U '

C

W

o -

d

3

o . 

o

y

3

0

H

o

0 , 

3

U - 

o

C8

o > '

o ° ° ` 

a 

a ¢ 

o

bi

0

cn

a - 

0

w

Q. 

K

a

U '

b

O '

0

o

d

o

0

0 ° -

d

U `• °' •

y ° 

0

a? ° 

0

0

0 .

o

3

k 

o °

0. 

0

a -

d

C .

y

c

o

Q. ,

b0
n

w ,, ° 

d

b

Q. 

o ° 

o ° 

a -

d

2

ce

o " 

3

N

3

A

O

a 

o

o

y

0

T

Y '  

x

o

U

o

o '''' 

bA

o

oo

0

4. 

0

i

0

bn • 

on

o

y '

d ° 

W , 

v

0

a 

o

W

i

bn

o ,, 

o

0

0

0

o

o  .., .. 

a '. 

i. " 

O

N , , 

c +

C 

4
4

U

a) 

U

U (

A

Og

N

c « 

I'

D

C;

3

0

O

ami °

ca

o ' 

U

a> >, 

CZ (

1)'' 

o

C71 ` 

b

41

co

p, •.• 

vUi

yti

OU " 

Fy . 
N

NN

b

N

O

z

00¢  

U  

2 °

Old. 

O

C6

o

Gm +

c8

a) 

OEl

c' 

11

M +

N%

u " '

amrC% .
0

o

U

O

0(

N1) 

O

0 '

C

0

O

O

U

y`

n ° 

O ' 

sy

N

aP= 

p

ccir} 
h

0 -

0

to

o

u

rn

o

M  -

do  
aN

o

N

o

NQ

a 

0atia0 

3rE -+ 

yoU
awa`

n

3° °°

Q . 

UUcCR

o

OU
p -

d '

0 +

C8

N

co

O

wtr '
7

O

G

Go ° 

00

41

4. 

O

ti

c"-' 

1401 ° 

v ° 

O

ou

CA

o

WU

0

o

cC

oU  
bA

cn

N -

v) 

o

o

0

C

p 

6

00

Qt¢.] 

CIS

U

cz > '° 

0

i

t +

b

0

ob

vzv

O

UU~ °

Nc•°
ro

N

cCw0. E

U

U

N

0>

0

cC

o

Q.

ti ° 

Q. ". 

Ln0Ez



p °

d

CIS

O

C 

s., `/ 

Y

O

I••

q

0

p

CU

U

O

N

Y

N

70

a } ° 

u

03

I—

P

bi)

y° 

ani = ° -

fl

co

U

a 

N

Y  

N

v ..

N

UL0. 
n
y

0

y

0

N

O '

C

p

N '

b '

o

O

Q. 

c,

3 > 

O

L>, 

p

cd

N

cd

2

In

to

0

0

CIS

O

0

0 [ 

U

0

0

N

0

3

U

0

O

rn

Y

r

C" 

v 

O

L

O

w°O , 

Y

b ° °

o

y

Ar ] ' >, 

C2

Cf) 

Q^ 

O

b

rn

g2 , ....... . ` 

W `/ •

Y

iy

U
C—

P

i'

q

r, q) 

CZ`

V

80 •.-

1

p 

1

e+.

1

Y

d

N

C

O

0 >

U, 

0

O .

fl

a 

O '' 

n

Ncdy ., .

0. .

0. 

Ln

O > 

N

CI

ani

p 

3 

i

ami

a~

i

a

v

o

ani

ani

p ¢' 

U

0

c

C'

s

N

7 ~ > 

00

O

cC

as

y0y

cl

O

Oo

d

w

t. 

O ^

C " 

a. 

Y - 

O

O

y

rn

V] 

N "

C

U

Y '

V

O

U

0

0

0

v 

N + 

s, 

4. ." 

0

U

3

f~ 

0 (

7

0

s +, 

i1

C) 

w0

aj

s. 

O 

4r

Y  

0

YO

N

GQ

40

O

30r '> 

iti , 

U

0

F

N

y 

0

0

O

O" 

0

7

Y

aQ

Cd

O

N

O ; 

0

0

c 

to > '

Lj

c

U

U

3 ". 

N

p

C4-
4

i0

U

Y

0

O

O

N

co

COD

W • 

O '

C

3

N

bD

0

L" 

O

a

Call)

0

s0. 

O '

b

p .>

7

N

O

O' 

M '

d

O

0

O +

O

O

p

b

U> 

Y

Y

w

P.. 

t~ •'+ 

y

30. 

311

Cw" 

V1 + 

Y

t1:
1

DG

4r

L: 

Y

Sir

k

4r

O

VJ

rn

O

ti

3

p

0

U

r

0y > 

r

O

bA
t . 

0

y

U

O

O

N

G"
r >, 

U

0, 

t"
r

0 > 

i

OP4 .

YC

c,

3

y

4

O

c 

00

y  

00 ,  

c

V >, 

ca  

3

O  

cd

cdto   °  

w

x

co

4

0  °  

0

C].  

O  

Yr

c 

0 .  

y • 

Cl)
i  , ''   

O

ti .. '

b

t-• 

0

on

0

O

0

as

w

s 

0

Z

w

0

U

0 ' ° "" 

vi

ti -

a . 

3.. 

0

U

O

3l

0. 

G) '" 

rn

c,..

1

0

w

b

s. 

O

7.. 

ca

U

p

0

0 >, 

3", 

y0 • .. 

N

O

N

O

0

O

CIO

r- 

U

0 - 

c6

cd + 

Y

O

4- 

cn

b , 

N

O

U

N

W

0

O " 

ca

cr, 

N

at

3

y

U

0

p

0 `" 

U

O

O. . 

p

c}, 

a

cC

O

0

U > -

O

d

00  

LV • 

55 -. 

v+'
i

N

b

ti

Q. "

Cy

0

O

2

N

cri "

0

O

0

t, 

U
J,- 

cz .

0

0 '

rs -

0

a 

cz

0

0

Y ¢. 

0

O

O . 

0

m

v 

2

co

2

W

O

cd

r

U

to

0,"> 

0

moi
Y3' -."

i•, `

N !

i/> 

0

U0 .„ {

ra-1
y 

OO `

E-+ '

Ci•. r 

i

0. 

N

y

Wp
w

O

N

y

O

O ^

O

CO

N

o

ti

0 °. ^

y

rn '

YC ¢

Q" 

P

b

N

U • 

s0. 

O

to

0

O

O

O

3., .--

1 ( 

0

s•. 

0

3 

0

cql .-

r

cz

0

30.E

0

0

0

i.• 

0  

w '

C •--

1

a .

fl

t".
1 > 

0 •  

Y

4°
i •

ai7+ 

O

O >> ., ; 

P. 

ti

O }, 

iC' 

c 

0 ' , 

mo = 

5

m

O

E'" 

0

0 ,. 

bA

3ti

3 +' 

O .

cn +

0+ 

o

y

s, 

COJ

0 '' 

p

Q. 

N

O

V

M

cz

0

U

x0

O

N

rA

U

r! 

Q

0

c0 •

C

0 ( 

0

cC

t - 

co

p

m

0) 

0

U '

C7

00 . 

c 

U >, 

0

0 .

d
t~ -- 

0 + 

0

X

L].. 

j

r0• 

b

y

O

O

li

0

b ° 

a 

to

yR° 

Q

A

Y°

cc

U

ami

y

0 , °' 

b

a, 

Z

w

a 

3 

a 

o  

O

M

c0

d

bA " 

b

y

5,. = 

N

Ll

r

U

O  

0 ¢ 

O 

r

Q • • 

y

O- 

o

cz°

U"" 

L" 

3 . • 

Q

b

ti

Q> 

Q

0

4+- 

0

El

N '

Co" 

ice- 

o

C) :~ 

a 

O

a 

o

H

o

4. 

a 

U '° , 

o

U

3

0

U

H

NO
b

N 

N

QC7

W

UU > 

U

O 

b

v

Z

2  

cz

9

ibi
N

M

I

t

r-- 

06

UwY

O
2

U

a

U

CIS

W

03

0

4. 

r, 

0

x

CWcC

vi

bocz •.. 

v

o

a 

d  

s•. 

cc

cz

Yr

U =.~" 

p

tzb0A
c 

N

y

U

CC •" 

7.

w

41

co

p

O

Y

to

70. 

r, 

O '

d

xl

CZ

rn

r

y

toO

U

O

O

Q 

th

N

p ,

O

0

U

U ,

t: 

cC

PUo

Q

0 .> 

ci,'

C

Q

N

En

coOU

Y 

F- 

O

b

bA

0

V% 

M

cz

co

N

M

I

t

r-- 

06

UwY

O2



0

U

3 °' .

o °'  

ami

A

O

C

O

0ma
i ° 

Q'>° ""

kU"
o >' 

co

i

a . 

v

Qo

da•
b

o

N

q

o

o

0

0

U ° 

b

5m
p4

Z . 

0 '

o0. 
0

a

0

0C'
s

cz

y'' 

k

c 

0000 '

d^ 

b

ai

C

0

O

w

0 ° 

0 ° 

U

3

C

0

0  

0  

0

O '

J

E

U

0

b

N. 

ti '" 

A

y

c >, 

a' 

b
q ' 

00

63

c

cn

O

cn

o .

b

Q

c>

a

3

u

y '

b ' 

c 

N ) 

O

N " 

S0. 

p0

ai .

a

j

c 

O

U

M

O

0

0

N .

4; 

N

vi

0

Z

O

U

y

0

w

m '

G

N

3' 

N

ti

N

N

it ° 

3

t,' • 

c" 

N

No >, 

N '

C

vJ

p

O +, ; 

4, 

p

y

4. 

U

L

6 

Li — 

O , . : •• " 

N

y

U

N ° 

4; 

V

CSC > 

ccS

C

4o. 

g' 

O

O

O

N . 

v, 

y

b

N - 

s -

d °" 

q

to

y " 

cd

W

A

U

O, 

A + •• 

a ^'' "

b

Q" 

N °

ao> i

o

o

too

N

r. 

0

Z

uy

n

p

t

cd

C;

3 *

9

I-

cj

U

rn.

Q

cz

C)

O

0 

o0o ° 
o , 

c

0

O

0o
i

U> 

o

0

N

N

U

U

P•

U + 

O *- 

O - 

o

rcz

Z

at.

sp

o

O ° 

o

oti °
O `- 

ooo

o

m

4.` > 

O 

o

cd "

0 "

0) 

oo

OC, 

O

U

abi

3

M

o

i

a, °> 

03

od+ +

0O3.+ 

WqU

Ud~°eeA ..
ddt ., • 

0oU +

por

pia
o

y

a " 

U

o  ° + °  

a

c

o

o° 

P

OU

cz

o

0

o

w

o

Pu

U

M .

78Ca
i ? 

Q.

cc .° 

0

cl 

N

U ¢

cc

N° ° 

O - p

O

cz ° 

c

O

w°>

LU

x >

0

o

N "' 

bpA ° 

N -+ ' . 

O •,

i

U > 

0 : '

b +"' ,   

Ri

N   >> 

U   '

S3    ^", 

v .^
3

api

an

U

U

U

x ,

U

v, 

O

p ' 

U

o

0

a 

o

b

0

a 

U  

O '

a

a

0

0  ;'

o >,  

U  

a   •  

0  .., , 

a•, , 

o   

0

H

a

0

U

a

c °' 

0, 

0

3

ami °" -° 

0

o

o

U

o ° 

a . 

0

U

O "" ° 

O ' .

S." . 

O

64

to

U ", 

O .-. 

F, + 

y

U

N ,_, 

U

Q. 

w

o

O

L
x

a ° „ °' 

s'. 

as  

0 . 

N .

0

y

1:$ . 

N  > 

0

3

N > ` 

0

3

a ° 

o

0 °' 

y 

1 

O ' 

b - 

cz

P-, 

0

O

W

w

0

0 

y

cq

ca > 

0

N

8 '" 

b

cz

0

o ' 

o

a 

a '

C

a 

o -

d ` ` 

u

cz

W) 

O

w

A >, ° '

n

cz

u

o

o

a, 

0

0

co

E °° - ° , 

U

N ° 

0

0

U

ti

N

V • 

U

O

r

cd , 

y

O >> + 

F. 

O . 

O

N  

cC

O

G7

c 

o

cd

N

fn

N

m

cC

Q3

i % 

y

VI

yy +•' .

0

V]  

cd

U

c 

N

M

U

i -'

y

N

o + 

U

N

cv

R. +"' ' 

o +-+ ° 

N

Q) 

O

U

N

I • 

i

3

b

C7

q

d -

u

a '

o

w

o `" '' .

o ' 

0

0

u '

y' 

0 .

o

a ° 

w °

to

O

N

ry

0

a

3

y ° 

4, 

N

y

a

o °. •• 

co

c 

U

y

4, 

UO

N .

pU

A

w '

b

0 -

fl -

d

O :, 

O> 

0

i ° '

G

O

a) 

O

cd

C4

0

co

0

0

0

L) 

U

b

cn

O

0

a 

0

a 

b

d

0 '

o

b

Ly . 

O •

5

A

Z

M

a, 

0

b .:. 

a 

0

a 

U- 

a) 

M

a 

0

0 ° ° 

x

c, 

O

ql

0 

3

Iczils0
3

p

ti

C

A  

a 

0 > 

3

U

0

3 :

t:

4o

a 

o

a •- 

o  

N -

d

a 

ami

v

o

a

V

U * 

o

cz

o :; 

O

d

O ..,

ca

0

3

b  

Z

C7

0 ' 

b

o . 

bA `° 

V

W

N , ", 

N (

7 

W

W .. 

o

a

V

o

y -' 

o . 

c 

s. 

o "ClcC .
fl

o

0

U

4c? `

n

C7

w 

y

C) 

o

o

s 

O

p = 

t 

p 

U

W

0

0

0 `' " 

0

c 

U 

C

a 

a 

a, 

O

Q. 

a 

a 

v, 

O

ca

a) ' 

o

O " .

b

0' 

N

0

0

NU ,'

OA, .

U. 

0

p. 

d

u

A •

rsH
3

0

0 

uR
0

0

a ' 

a 

o

Q

N -

0 [ 

r

Q

to

l '° " 

a

U

0~ 

0 ° 

a ' 

C

O ° 

o

cz

U , 

cz

o

a3

ti

rY .-, 

0  

Q

Q

N

u

o

cS

ri

cri 

0

0

v 

d

Z

ao

O

u

No ^

o °' `

0

0 °

r, °''

A

cz

a 

o

00

o

d

O

U

O

0

N

a° 

o

d [ 

A

Fes- 

Q. 

I0

4

Ln00



t 

0

to

s~ 

fq

cqj

ybo 

odv
o

o

s 

UD

o

O

o

b `

db
O  

o ~- 

mw

p

Uo
i

i -

d 

o

3 .

o

4

70

0° 

o .. 

iG

0C4-
4

Q

U)

a) 

0 — 

0 ? 

E

U

O

O

A

a) 

f! 

U  

0 :+'

i  

0

C', 

li

O

0

o

to

73

0

0

QQ( .

o

0

0

o . 

p  

O

Oa) 

yO

to

o  

0

0

UUU)

4

A

v

O

o

O

0+

n

0: ° 

mb° °° 
y  

yap

o

UD >, 

m

0

wi

0

3cS

V

a 

p

3

V] 

m " 

b

vUi

U

to

o° 

0

Q

U

cmc

0

j

U5on + 
N

O

0

m

N

0

vi " 

U 

cG

Q

03p1401
U

oN
03

y .

z

U

Y  

4. 

c 

C'

sa
4.,° 

3

O  . 

W

U

U

by

U

4• 

N

U

a, 

o ° 

a, 

aco
M>

i

U

o

U

a 

U

p

o

cON

b

V

o

0 "" 

o ~' 

c 

y0

U

b

0 >, ° 

N

cqj

3' 

o

O

b

rte'' 

f¢ 

o

o

r' " 

o

p

coM 

n : 

a , 

N

cq

o ,

r ~ . 

0 > 

71

ODoUo
U

cqU

U

b

or. ~ 
o

p

p

a+ 

N `

3

cd

b

V

rn

U ... 

a) 

U

t 

U0
t, 

Q . 

24

t". 

U

0

c 

c
S

N

iG

0

a) 

a 

N

j

4] 

m

W

a) .

fl .

d .

b > 

o  

U

O  

y

rl

U °

o -

d - °

a) 

O

M _° 

y

y

0 ¢

p

y

40OAN
43

OO
O> . 

0

Q

U`a3-) , ' 

ba

NiA

U 

a)""  

FU0'". 

ayo
vpa) 

pp'

aC

S`

tiW 

Oq 

Up 

0

0  

y_• 
U, 

Oa ? :

0 ,   

O
pc°

NCS

wO4° 
5

mm°
oao '

d0p
a

a

09o > 

0

x

O

a 

a 

3

O

p

O

p

W

r

O

0

p

O

W

O

crQ •
z —' 

v

C ) 

O

O00
0

0 — 

Oc.>
p

Q ¢ 

o

oO06
09

JR. 

0

o

U

0  

4  

a

P. 

o

o

Q ° 

o

0

03

Nu
co

4~ 

o

a

O ° 

WL°
0

o

o

3

U

O

O

ti

O

O

M

C

0) 

U

Ln

Z

U

o

t

M

0

o

o

0

0

0

OA

0 « 

oClo

O

0

9

p—

O

yC. 

O  

0

p

Vo

O . "

0

t• = 

cn

voo
O

iUUo,
3aa))" 

a. ° 

b _

M

p, `'~ 

U -

d

w  

an °' '

b

Q

o

coU

a

a) '

U '

b , 

p

3

N

y

a) 

a+ ; 

U

a) 

30

CCS

O ^

3

E- ^' 

r+ 

v `

d

c •." 

O

Q

O

y

Ofl
U

O

116

S'

N , — `

tnp
p

O >, 

Q . 

O

U ~

U

o

i 

aoi

o '

p~ 

b

U '

d

Q" 

o

O

Q, 

N

CS

Q. '

y

0` 

F 

P. 

b

a> 

0

c

o

9>~ 

a 

a- '

n

4. 

o

o

O> 

o

crl

a 

a 

0

N

N

U

p

4. .

o

H

p

Q

O

cd

n " > 

o ° 

a 

a ,

o

y

x

a '

n

U

U

o  

S

d > .

fl

a 

a

3

0

N o

tom" 

m

m

3

ti

O

p '

i .

4,=: 

a) 

t1r) 

eq

C7

j

b

b ° 

d

N

o

a° 

0

0

0 >, 

3

o

y

w

O

o

Q

co

r

0(

n- 

0

0

0

4• 

n ° 

n

N ° ° 

o ° 

Iq

c 

o

tw

o •' ° ` 

o `" >~ 

Q

o

o

Q ( 

0

s 

3

W , 

G

1

W

p 

p

O

N ' • 

3

p :~ ° °' 

2

7

p' 

abi

on

a° 

o

Caj

Ems- 

U

U

a , 

0

0

M

U

P

w

Q

U

p° 

w > "" 

a) 

O

Q

a «

s • 

0

r. 

o> 

O

U

a, 

y

4  

Ey

F  °

o :?  

9n +. ¢ 

o -

d

o

O

Q.  

U

H

a' 

o

o

o

ppa", 

a' 

a' •

6 -

a

o ' 

0

0

a) 

p 

p ° 

P.

95
a 

L 

Z

d

v

UU ° 

dC7rn
ON

Q

9GG,
O

o

o

2N

H -

5C7 -
d

v) 

d

d

0 •

0

0"

o

OF) 

o

040r

Ln0



N

bA

d• ., 

Y

h

rn

Q) 

bin°  

Q' ° 

0

0

o

tib; 

C6

0

U  

o

x ° >   

o  - 

Q)

N

3> 

hJ

O

rC

o

o. °

y

0 .°

y

3

0

w .. 

m

a 

Li • .-

i

y

i^•

1

U

U('+ 

tiO

r¢+•
1

bA ' 

V7 •

C;

3 >

ci..

P

Y

p'

2AH^
O

O

U '

C

Q

bA • • 

Q) 

p

E 

0

Q. 

N

C.)'

1)   

U  

En

O

Q4 

t 

vOUi  

b

O '

0

cZ ^- 

s" 

N  "  

Q) 

25. 

O

COO

U

ycn

U

0

0

40

UO

V

d°

a 

0

Uay

p

w

0

b.^ 
C/

aU> i)' 

UYO

Y

q

Q) ° 

b

t

O

c

WOoo
o

o

0

p

Uo >, 
U

o

b° 

CO'-

u`

P4

U

C

CU

O

cI*
O

o

0

O

can. 

ti

O

cz + 

U•ia++;
s

tr, 

U 

LL

b >, ' 

W . 

o

m

Q

N

t

0

cz

o. ° 

b

o

a

0 ° 

v

Q

a

h

d

o

o

C

9

m

W

q

b

4:

x

0

0  `'-

d

rl  ° ` '"

UQ
o

N 

w

o 

p

N

N

o

a 

0

0

Cl °

A

o

a 

o° 

Q

o

Y

O

tm, 

o

m 

U° 

o

c

0  > 

Mo
U

o4C° 

O

0

cis

7- 

14

cz

Yo., 

Y

P0 
2w `

wl

Cti 

Pr'

U °^°•

oyO . 

P, 

y + > ",

a 

UY 3N, 

0Ny

p

CQ

0

0

O3
1, 

i

q

ti

r•=

H • 

Q), .

N

Y .

ZM
O

W

0

N °

O

0  

03p
C

U

t0
i

O

lzicd,°> 
O

O

U

N ' = -

8

O 

0 '

C

r

icl
0

0

9."  

pdC

as

0

te' 

y0

0

7

O 

cz ° 

m'

72
o

W0
i . 

0"

o

wla
j 

cz

o

O

U

c 

i '" 

m° 

U

0

s. 

i-

o

Ci
o°

b

p; 

o

o >, 

oo
oocz

O

O

n2. 
4.
1

r

aa
o° 

Y

U .

a> 

ca

Y " ¢ 

bn

w

U

j

W

q

o .

a

0

y = '

C

p

C/  ., 

P. > 

p -

0

0> 

b

4.. ° 

b

x

Y

Y , 

o

U

5

O

U

c

o

co

0 -

d '

C7 — .

L1

O

U

a 

t1

Y '+. 

O

O

2 .. 

P. 

bA

0

cz

o

0

4. 

5

U

a 

o `. 

a 

0

0

W

O

O °' 

O. " 

O

Y .- 

00 " 

0° 

P °' 

c0

t

Z

P

W

O ° 

U

O

U

4] 

rA

U -

d

o

a 

U

chi

o

o

ti _ 

U -

0

o . -

0

a -

0 " 

o

cd

U 

r

U , . 

p

y

o °' '

b 

r - 

U

U

bR

y

O

C

c >> 

Q

Y

U

P

m •., . , '  / 

c0C

Q) 

O ° 

SU. 

4" 

C+ ." 

b ~" '

ti ' '

C

0 .

0

bA " 

y

Q) 

i- -

d

v 

rcn

U

Q• 

s, 

N ` " ° 

j .

o

Q, 

Q) 

Y

Q) , 

Q) .

y . 

O

Q) + 

Q) 

O " (

D . 

id

Y

n

y

O

Q) -, 

V

O

N .

F"•
1

Y

Y

G /" (•

y 

y

r- 

4

Z

0

Y

U

Q] •

N

AFM - - 

Y

Vn !

n

co

Y4 ^ 

O 

l

p

p

N

0

a4

H

O

U> 

m

a) 

on

P, "

O

Y

cn

3

U

a

O

Q) 

03

c. 

s" ° 

N

P. 

o

Q) 

4-
4

N

U

a > 

o > ° 

m

0

o ¢ 

O ^

o & 

ami -

d

0

Q, 

c .

Y >, ' 

3

o

a

C7 °' 

o °

3

aUi

a >

P" "" ° ° 

a°

i

s°'
e ° 

U . ° 

b

o

0 `. 

o

bUD

Y

b
0

vi

CO

0

Uto
i

Q)N" 

aO
l

P

Y+' 

b

y. 

YrPU. . ^

ifl 

r" 

C•.
0. }

C+'
i

l

tiV  

papy"

v 

rc

n

oy 

b

a1

Ly  

L: 

Pa, 
c °

Xy . 

Y.y •; 

V` 

7

o'

0

0

P..-; 

CZU

O /

5

p

0S2

O

QN
U

o '

O °

U' 

ONO

v4]

4p .
p "

Co, 

03

4. 

M

oU
3

y

U

d

o °

U

N

0

U

o

c

P

cCn >,

p

p > 

V

Q° 

O 

Z° 

y

N

O

Ya0Q'
i   •, '.

a C 

o ° 

o3a   

3

Y

WN 

W

A, 

cj

rj :

dio
10d

a? 

F

Q), . 

i°

0

cn

PNO
O

p

U

P

N`

n -

s }' 

cUb
Y°dTO'. 

c°>> 

ocd
o

Q) 

0

ti

o

ct

0O

0

Q

O ° 

Za
0

EnEn

o

U

y

P , 

O

4.

p

p

o

O

Q) 

cn ° 

p0. 

7° 

00
p

NN.fwN 

a. 

0

Z

U

3

d , 

1° 

oU
o

mQj
UU

0

C40

a

to "` 

0

Qj

o

o `" ° 

o 

Qq' 

Q'" 

b

C

a. 

o

3

cz

P" 

O

0

t

Y

C";

3unU
o , 

d , 

v 

cz

O

U

U

cz



1.

0

rs

en ' 

M

io ° 
w

03

O

o

P. -

d

aocl
con

Y: 

co

0

co

co

4.
1CZto

qCl
W

C 

U

ll

n

U

cid

rev

oo

i31

Cn

Y

t2

w

d

Y

O

o

a

O

w

o

O `' 

GU

a 

p ' 

Z

v

O

W

b  

a>

U - >, 

b

0% 

bg

fl , 

O

c

Ln,

0s
CD

ci

4..

4

to

A '

C

b

4. 

on . 

C ° ° 

a 

O

m

cc

0

51

o

o

o

y

O

W

Q" ° 

a) 

o

U

f=, 

a , 

o  

W

o

w

tio
W

0

Cd

0

co

O>, 

cC;

3 , 

Y -

Oo
U

03 >, "

0 .

2

u ° 

C

O -

O

rYiO

oa>
w

o

U

Uma
c, dY

Y

o

a

Y °

4- 

cn

O

C-

1

W

O

N

a) 

o `-' 

U

W

O " 

U

y

4° 

o .

fl • 

U •'-' ° 

o ' ^' 

O ,

tUi' ° 

x

o

a

u ' 

a 

o >, 

o

o

W 

l

3

Y

aU, 

d ° `/ 

W

y„ 

Y

o

Y

O

u +' . . 

Uj

ca

O

Y

Y . 

rn . 

Y

v . 

O

ti

cC

w

Cti , ° "'' 

Y : .

y

cC ? 

o >, 

o

O

id

C

o

d4

U

U ° ^' 

Q

oo~ ' 
a 

o 

Y

o > 

E

a

cz

4 . 

o , 

on ° 

r > 

U16

opo, 
U

A ' •° 

o

a' 

j, 

C' 

A + 

o `` ° 

Q)
i

o '

ca

t` 

Co•

o

ami

ami -°

o ` ° 

o

w

6,  +' 

W

a) 

O

b0

0 ' . 

Y

cs, •.. " ^

as

a]+ 

N °° 

0

0

N

O

4 

ca

ar

Y

y "

p

d , 

c 

A

a) 

cd

a) 

W

m

Q. . 

a) 

O

r3 -- 

s: 

co

cC>, 

N

y" 

G", ° 

r

Y

Fr" 

on

Lr' 

N

I

O

3

O -

d

O

a

O

a) 

t 

O

O

O

a 

Yy

U

U

b

y ,, 

O

U

N> 

O

4
r

0

0. 

a
o

3

pq

W

e ' '" -

o

0

on

u , 

4. 

0

3

d

W

N> 

o° ,. 

423

N

O

O

ce •'" .' 

O>

ct

U

C

O -

0 >, 

Q. 

O

2

y .. 

U

d - 

a) 

a) 

Z

O

cC

b

0

a, ° 

2 °' 

o

m

Y

Y

U

O

a, 

a ° 

c 

c13

w

g

O

O ^

y

b

O

C7

O

a „ ¢, ¢ 

o

on

ULn
a -

d

a, '

r.,

a

0

0 .

s:   

ca

w.. 

c _

1

a 

C~ 

Y . "

i '> 

V

U

U

O •+

I

o

Z

c° 

o

o

ani

a. 

N

a. 

o °° 

d

d

N

c '

y . 

v°
i

b

b

N

p

0 ' 

4° 

C-) 

a3i

U

2

q

I

p

Al

a, ' 

o

p -

o

a

a, 

o

a' 

o '" . • 

W

3

0

3

V 

y  

do

U  

OU 

o 

yOnA  

U

dY 

o •

C..
i

b .. 

Q' .

Y' ^

ti •.^" ' 

U 

o

c

n) 

po
on  

oa)

n

0

CO

a .

o

U

So

a

U-""¢  

o

r

p

y>On

V

03

O )

4-
4

3Y

l

0

N

Y

a)  

UO
a+ Von

Qms. 

n '

b

ai  '

d

U

O "  

N

O

va)
i '

b

Y

N

O

on

cd

a) 

vi

M

U " 

a) 

G" 

3 +

O-'  

a) 

o"  

U  

a) .

d

bn

b  

U  

N

a0i

N

a

b

b

cOi

o

a) 

O , 

ps

O

69

4.

1a) 

0

U •- 

O

U

iUG

bn

O

w

O

s" , 

N° 

b

w°>', 

ullw  
0

0

0 , 

Oa> 
I

mo

o

o

o

p, 

U. 

d

U

0

o

0

o

W >, 

o

o

Cda ° 

ww

U

p3o°
4n

2Ca. 
a

3 

o

6y ° 
C41"°

o 

A2

o0

Uv50
w°° ° 

ci 

cC

U

v] 

v 

Q0o1
LM0M

V-

1



M

F, 

N

M  

p ~

vii

w

cz .

0

00 • 

4] 

N

cd .

yt. 

0 •

p , 

O

O

a    , 

O

c 

ad

bA

d 

C ^

cd

cOZ

U

ycC

y .

0

C

N

a) 

a) -

d

O

O > 

b

a 

p

o

U ° °" ° 

U

S-. ' 

z

o

aoi ° °' ° 

ami  °' .   

3

o   

cdEn
v, 

y

o •, ° 

a 

p. : ° 

o

voi

ami

i

o `

D ° 

O

0

v •

U ' ° 

a ' -

a . 

o -

o

M

o

0

o

C7

y

N, :

fir ,, 

UQ

vUi •

fl '

d

p

Cd

U > > 

No

25 . 

N

O

6, 

a) 

v' 

O ° 

O

a) 

U, 

O

N

N ' 

O

Ek,

0

N

p

N

a " 

O

K

O >, 

U

N

4r "

d= 

cd

a) .=

c0C

O\ 

C

Y

EOU
r

y

OU

w

t"p, 

WO

0

bA

O

b

rCd

0

U

w+

r. 

0

X

y

4

0 + ' 

O

4" +' 

a) 

i0

O

U O > -

0

cd

Oti- 

C

mN

0

p

a

o

0

0

U ° 

o

U

O

0

0

0

0a
3

U

U

R

0

C." 

4
cz 

0ck='

caQ) ,

0

O 

Mo
Cc, 

pOn

O

N

O

o

d0

0 -

d

O

y

N

a

o

tb

a

pUp

C

0

cd ; 

od

p .

0

U .

y00
0

U

U

Ib

cd .

0

0

C'

s

C

y

a? '' 

O

o

a 

a) 

o

cd

a) 

a) ° 

O

cz -

d ° 

O

3

3

O

a) 

Q. 

o

A

0

O

A

o (

7

O

cG

sU

a) 

p

0

a) 

b

C

a)= 

s, 

P .

0- 

10

Irl, 

3

a

O 

3

O

rU

Q

mA 
0 • •

r'
s

O

Z

0

t 

O

o

vi

0aco

U° =

U

U —>, >

cd

0 

o

o

of

C

o

i" 

on

o

0 

N

U

y

id

j

co

U0

Oyd0 

e

y

M

bNU '

p

QU0
0

O • 

p

b

d7 • " 

42

00. 

O

N

U .

0

O

U

c:

mmcz
O

JD

iU

0, 

Y' 
o

3

U

aoi

cz

CO

0

to

c

o

o -

o

o

d

0

M -

d

Q• 

O

a 

a" 

o

en

O

O

0 .

d .

k

40) 

U

GU0°" 
z° • 

03

xai
ai '

O 

v 

NN

N + 

NyU
O

oo

N  ° 

N

0

O

bO

b

U

00

Cy
pO

N

a) 

eq

U

0"

d 

cU
N

0

C13

QC
W



to  

Y

Y

O

U

O

a) 

ril

bb

r

C4-
4

0

d

bD

p

mI::) 

o

UO  OW
a

pi

Uvp
U 

cC

o > >

U

r " '

s •

O .

r.¢

Y

U

cz

r, 

o

U

U

U

U .. 

to

o -

d

3

4, ..• 

p

O ° 

U

U

0

to

O

O+ 

cd

xU

iO

O

C;

j

U > 

4

owt'
o

bD

tU
0

O

U

p

O

p

W

U

UO
U + 

U ° 

b. 

U

to

U;'

o:

0°° 

0

cz

o°

Q) ; 

o  

x

o

o

o

b

4

O

Q

cd

i -

i

vQ% 

U

bD ' 

7-

1

cC ,
S." > 

r + .

Y. 

O

U .

U.

Y

m

D< 

Cd

Vi

Y "

o

O

Y

m -

o

y

a, °' , 

o

fl

o

ami

P, ° 

b -

xd °+ ` °° 

U

G

o

c 

4. 

U

U

F " 

0 °

O

C7

U

a

tor. OD  

U

Y

C),

Q) 

rn

p - 

p

Y. 

O

O

t• +- "~ 

O

C 

O

y = 

rnU

U

O. 

O

cls-, 

V1

3

3

U 

o

o '

Cat0
0.
4

o  ' 

v

p"

0 ¢. 

U

o

U °' 

o {

j{j

41

Ute., 

3

O . ° 

on

C.

r °

Cd

U - 

Y

U

o

Q" 

cz

p + 

0cl
0. 

R, 

o

o

o

o

to

x

w

ami

a3i

o > ' 

UJq

UO

U -

o

cz

v) 

t. 

U

y   "-+ 

U +' ' : 

F" 

y  

fir" 

cd

0

U . '

d

r. 

U

N  

V)

0

e 

N

00 = 

U

y > 

sem. 

N

CO ` .

Yip

d 

d

u

U

1

Cn..., 

yUd

Y

O

O3

P. 

co

w

OU

WY

CCciO

OEi
to

Y

V

n

0

o

m

mU
a

U

Ooo
ai

b

Q0U
w

O

UZ
p

cz " 

o

D

b

U

co  

t

w

Q

c;

j`

3

ncz

0

o

a - 

c° 

d

v7
a

U

0

cd 

c

C13  

yy
CA" 

c>

O

99 .

5"

o

0

U

M , 

PL4

O

0ad

y

E-, 

Oco

o 

O

n

M

co

0

O

C,

3rn

Y  > 

O

U = 

3 > "

O ~ 

U° 

0

C,

3

co

ed

0

NUNs^•."+ '

YYCbs".°' 

QUcoOYcc
C •

ci 

ai++ 

H

to" 

oc 

o '

O

O

rn

0

U

Q. 

N

y"

DNU
U

rn

a) '

A

0

O

b

U - 

v

N •

wl-•

i-,•%, 

UY a

A

U

O

0r . 

0  

bo

o  

O

o ; 

o0 
r. 

to

0

O

cis > - 

cbD

C;

3

CIO

OO

Z

U

O•

cncl
O

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

O

b

cd

4" 

amsbbD

c °

N

p °

C;

3ca % 

U

cd

0d
NN  

c .

c.  

b

cn

o

cz

cz

ca

0

U

Ui

a

Q ° 

1

p

0 ', > 

4- > : 

U

OO
3

U

O

Z °

w

0

U) ° °> 

Z = 

10 -

U - 

co >,-

0

NC

U

NU 

U

o

U

p1

U

Ln0



N_ cyd

c 

N

O

014

a

r.° 

4 '. 

cd

N

o -

14 ° cd >

1m
U

U

0

cd

41

cd

0

d

cd
rq

cd `+ 

LU

U

p "" 

p

C% 

F

O

cd

O 

r 

i

ai  

y

p

UC7
U

U

cd

OFi
F..

4

U

U

cdto
O

U

u

U

V1

a

cd

O

ppq0
W

to

bA °

rr• 

Om

Cd

O

O

O

O

CO

i+

Z

p

b

00 °
UUUUU + 

ocdN
to

U

cd

O

cd

b

cir

Uu
Q

Q

A

x° 

a

cd

a°

i

H

C4

1401

44

o

U

o

U

a

p 

x

o ' 

o

U

U

O

iN+ a a

NU

Item B



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 108

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED
BY WILTON T. BAILEY AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

FOR MORE THAN 24 YEARS

WHEREAS, Wilton " Thomas" Bailey retires on December 1, 2022 as a Warrants Police Officer, with more
than 24 years of service with the City of Goldsboro Police Department; and

WHEREAS, Thomas began his career on September 9, 1998 as a Police Officer with the Goldsboro Police
Department; and

WHEREAS, on October 7, 2007, Thomas resigned as a Police Officer with the Goldsboro Police
Department; and

WHEREAS, on January 2, 2008, Thomas was reinstated as a Police Officer with the Goldsboro Police
Department; and

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2011, Thomas was transferred to a Warrants Police Officer with the
Goldsboro Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2018, Thomas was promoted to Interim Police Corporal with the Goldsboro
Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on September 23, 2020, Thomas returned to a Warrants Police Officer with the Goldsboro
Police Department, where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, Thomas has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the
admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, 
City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Thomas Bailey their deep appreciation
and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that we express to Thomas our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health
in his future endeavors. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force
and effect from and after this 21" day of November, 2022. 

Attested by: 

so,, 
Laura Getz, City Cler

vid Fran\, M ayor:-- A



Goldsboro Home-ARP

Allocation Planning and Public Participation

Item D



Agenda 
• HOME-ARP Overview

• Project Timeline

• Allocation Planning Process

• Agency Consultation

• COA Pros and Cons

• Public Participation

2

2



HOME-ARP Overview

• $5 billion for homelessness assistance and assistance to other vulnerable 
populations to:

• Provide capital investment for permanent rental housing, upgrade available stock of 
shelter to include non-congregate shelter, and provide tenant-based rental assistance 
and supportive services

3

Eligible Uses

Affordable Rental Housing

Tenant-Based Rental Assistance

Supportive Services

Non-congregate Shelters

Qualifying Populations (QPs)

Homeless (McKinney Act definition at 24 CFR 91.5)

At-risk of homelessness (McKinney Act definition at 24 CFR 91.5)

Fleeing/Attempting to Flee Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual 
Assault, Stalking, or Human Trafficking

Other Populations where assistance would Prevent the family’s 
homelessness; or Serve those with the Greatest Risk of Housing Instability



Project Timeline

4

*HUD requires that the public has 15 days to comment on the Allocation Plan in it’s development phase. This includes one 
required in-person hearing, taking place on 11/21 and a virtual option. All public comments will be recorded and 

addressed in the Allocation Plan.

Public Hearing

Virtual Public Comment Period*

City Council Selects 
Allocation

Allocation Plan Reviewed by 
City Council & Finalized

Submit Allocation Plan to HUD 

11/21

11/21-12/5

12/5

12/19/2022

12/30



Allocation Planning Process

Compile 
Organization List

Outreach Agency 
Consultation Follow-Ups

Allocation
Planning

5

The goal of Allocation Planning is to;
• Address needs and gaps that currently exist in Goldsboro’s provisioning of services to address homelessness
• Gauge opinions on how to maximize local impact with the federal funding via projects
• Prioritize eligible projects by relative importance

Public 
Participation



Agency Consultation

25+ local agencies were invited to attend a Working Group Session. 21 individuals were consulted and interviewed.

Agency/Org Consulted Type of Agency/Org
Greene Lamp Homeless Service, Rental Assistance Provider 

Warm Body Warm Soul Homeless Supportive Service provider

Volunteers of America Homeless / Veterans Supportive Service provider

Habitat for Humanity Home Ownership transition facilitator

United Way of Wayne County Homeless Supportive Service provider

4 Day Movement Homeless Supportive Service provider

WAGES (Wayne Action Group for Economic Solvency) Homeless Supportive Service provider

Mirakal’s Love for Lives (MLFL, Inc.) Homeless Supportive Service provider

Eastpointe
Homeless Supportive Service provider

Nu Hope Village
Homeless Supportive Service provider

Goldsboro Fire Department
General Services

Laundry Love Goldsboro
Homeless Supportive Service provider

Tommy’s Foundation
Homeless Supportive Service provider

Ongoing projects in Goldsboro;
• Pre-packaged meals for the homeless
• Career Resources (including a clothing 

center for work clothing)
• Encouraging landlords to rent to 

Veterans
• Mental health services for the 

homeless
• Emergency housing vouchers
• Rental and utilities assistance
• Laundry Services
• Non-congregate shelter provisioning

6



COA Pros and Cons
Course of Action Description Pros Cons

COA 1: Need and Gap Based
Prioritization

Splits funding between 5 
organizations based on 
survey-based prioritization of 
perceived community needs

• All needs and eligible expenses 
will be addressed, with an 
emphasis on the highest-ranked 
priorities

• More organizations granted 
funds

• High administrative burden
• Potential for duplication of 

efforts

COA 2: Feasibility/Availability

Splits funding between 5 
organizations based on 
their presentation, 
organization, and delivery of 
project goals

• Opportunities given to several 
organizations

• All needs and eligible expenses 
will be addressed

• High administrative burden
• Potential for duplication of 

efforts
• Miniscule amount of funding 

for each project

COA 3: Proven Success

Funds a small number of 
projects / organizations that 
have a proven track record of 
success in the Goldsboro 
community

• Low administrative burden
• More funds to each selected 

organization
• Higher potential for impact with 

selected projects

• Only some community needs 
will be addressed

• Lack of quantifiable 
goals/results regarding 
housing

8

The three COAs were selected based on a combination of independent research and agency consultation.



Recommended Allocations

9

3 different courses of action have been recommended—Each is based on a particular investment ideology

Total Funding Allocation: $907,913 Allocation Ideologies

Survey-Based Feasibility / Availability Proven Success

Overseeing Agency Project Title
Eligible Expense 

Category

Qualifying 
Populations 

Targeted
Proven Success

Course of Action #1 
Funding Amount

Course of Action #2 
Funding Amount

Course of Action #3 
Funding Amount

4 Day Movement

Affordable housing and 
Supportive Services 
Enhancement

Affordable Housing, 
Supportive Services

All qualifying 
Pops

Manages and allocates $150K 
/ year for various programs

$100,000.00 $150,000.00 $450,000.00

WAGES
Supportive Services 
Enhancement #2 Supportive Services

All qualifying 
Pops

HHS 2021 grant recipient for 
Early Head Start Services for 
5,100 infants and families $100,000.00 $125,000.00 $450,000.00

MLFL Restoration of Hope 
Village

Non-Congregate Shelter, 
Supportive Services

All qualifying 
Pops

N/A; Raised $500K for 
project thus far $250,000.00 $275,000.00 $-

Greene Lamp Tenant Based Rental 
Assistance Program TBRA Homeless

AmeriCorps grant program, 
CSBG Program, WIOA 
Workforce grant program $200,000.00 $100,000.00 $-

Nu Hope Village Ivy Court - Tiny Homes Non-Congregate Shelter

All qualifying 
Pops; Veteran 
Focus

Created 6 permanent 
veteran homes w/ 2019 
HUD-VASH voucher funding $250,000.00 $250,000.00 $-

Total: $900,000.00 $900,000.00 $900,000.00

Risk Scale



Public Participation 
Stage Description

Inform

Public Hearing will be formally announced to the public by November 8, 2022

Date announced via;
• City Calendar
• Facebook, Twitter, Newsletter
• City Council Meeting

Collect The public hearing will take place at the Council meeting on November 21, 2022. An online form 
will be available during that time for participants to opt to submit their feedback virtually.

Address
City feedback to be presented via;

• City Website
• Facebook

Develop Input public feedback and comments into the Allocation Plan draft.

Distribute
The finalized Allocation Plan will be disseminated on the City website. There is 
opportunity here for a series of social media posts to accompany it.

A public hearing is required by HUD. Feedback has already been collected from 25+ community members that were 
consulted as part of the Agency Consultation requirement.



Questions?



E









SURVEY FOR 
KENNETH DOUGLAS EWS 

- AN~;wFE 

PROPERlY ZONED R-16 (OlY- 6F GOLDSBORO) 

LEGEND 
l.R.S. IRON ROD SET 
l.R.F. 1ReN- "ROtr FOOND 
l.P .F. IRON PIPE FOUND 
RATIO OF' PRECISION MINIMUM 1/10,000 

I, BoBBY REX KORNEGAY~ CERTIFY THAT lHIS PLAT 
IS Of A SURVEY SUCH AS THE RECOMBINATION OF 
EXISTING PARCELS, COURT ORDERED SURVEY OR 
OTHER EXCEPTIONS TO THE DEFINITION Of A 

I, BOBBY REX KORNEGAY, CERTIFY THAT THIS 
MAP DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN 
ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION 
(DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 

SUBDIVISION. I 1162 PAGE 196 AND DEED BOOK 1162 PAGE 
§ 196 AND PART OF DEED BOOK 1499 PAGE 

\ ~ 179): THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION IS DIXIE GARDNER ELLIS 
STONEY CREEK TOWNSHIP 

WAYNE COUNTY, N.C. 
I MINIMUM 1/10,000: AND THAT THIS MAP '- rf i MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE ST AND ARDS 

'- .,. OF PRACTICE FOR LAND SURVEYING IN NORTH 

NO HORIZONTAL CONTROL WITHIN 2,000 FEET 
AREA COMPUTED BY D.M.O. METHOD 

REFERENCE: 
All Of DEED BOOK 1162 PAGE 196 

PART Of DEED BOOK 1499 PAGE 179 

SCALE: 1 • • 60' 
AUGUST 30, 2022 

I 

AREA I 
36,046 SQUARE FEET OR 0.827 ACRE± //. 

\ \ 
\ \ I 
\ \ ~ 
\ \_ I 
\ CAllAIN DEREK MlMAN, ET. ux. ff I . 

PROPERTY I 
\ DEED BOOK 3408 PAGE ~9 \ 

\ \ / 

. . ~'\O 
C:O·~~y~ 
~<f, ~"IP' 61 

•• 
~· . o..• 

~ d "> ~ 
\ ~ I 
L /1 I 

' ,lb \ __$~ ~ CAROLINA (21 NCAC~56.1600). THIS 30TH DAY 
{'' "IP' ti> ) ~ t OF A~GU T, 12. 

' ~ ~/ I 
. ' , ,.. ~~ I _J _ _l !lf - -~.:l•!.:.:=_ 

' "' / I Boe·BY REX KORNEGAY DA TE 
'- '!/:!.t.'f"J!. / J · PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. L-944 
~ v 300 EAST WALNUT STREET 

~'fl-// _ I GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 2~?,l9,,~ 
'""' I· TELEPHONE NO. (919)735-~ CA~''1, 

I LICENSE NUMBER: F- 1054 ,'b~.•·'tt~S'i'~··~( /,, 
;:..,. .... ·~o .. ,,~~ 
...~,.: Q ~ -:,y.-

1 = i SEAL ': = 
I ~ I = ~ L-944 ~ = 
I x -=-~~ (_ ~ $ .>...:: d i J, ~~,,~ .... ",.'!!:;: "• , 1, ,, v, I ~ .., ,, r'''''""':.·~, ... 

i ~l!:l ''1 REX \(.~~\' 
f\ <V/ / "' \ 'iP' ~ I 

\ / .....-'\.- , ... o" I 
\ // \ ~<f, 
\ ( \, / ....... 

~ f)~e yY'O E>CJSTING 

R ~Ni!:,, .. .. .--.J 
' I 1'0 / 

31:.21· .. Ji 
ICENNElH DOUGLAS El.US 

NllJ WFE 
DlXI£ GARDNER ELLIS 

PRCPERTY 

I sr=a.iil~ ~'""'''' 
Qj.J l!s~~:g 
I ~~~i9 
I ~ m~ 

\ \ 
\ \ 
\ \ 
\ \ 
\ \ 

\ ~ 
\ \ 
\ \ 
\ \ 

t\ 
\f..\ 
r\\~ 
;! \ 

" \ \ 
\ . .. \ 

BRANDON GRADY 
PROPERTY 

DEED 8001< 3138 PAG£ 721 

"' 
~ 
,, 

~I 
!l.;, 

1' 

ICENNElH DOUGLAS EWS 
/111/J WE 

DOCIE OAftONER EWS 
PRCR!tTY 

DEED BOOK 1182 PAGE 198 

~'J</j Ti N1 
fftJhl~ 

18&.90' 

I 
I 

"'I .., 
I I I 8 tD 

~: ~~ I ..,_ 
, ~ 
I I 
I Cll 

DEED BOOK 1489 Pl« 171 
PLAT CMINET K SLIDE 48-ff 

LOT NO. JA 

I ~ ~~ 
I ~ a. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

1¢24' 11.R.F. (BENl) S 11'!50'3S- E I.PF. IN ~- l.R.S. N 10'54'32" W 147.95' -~~I.PF. IN CONaE1E 

--------------------------~ ·~~·----------------- N.C. SECONDARY ROAD N~ 1003 _ --4 • 
---------- - - (NEW HOPE ROAD) --------1'11~ -------- - -------------------------------- . --------------- -- -:-- --

SECTION . NO. 2 . 29-H TSB-220348-0227F21 



W
NEW

HOPE
RD

PAXTON 
PL

SHELLEY DR

0 100 20050
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-13-22
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST:ACCESSORY DWELLING

SU-13-22
ACCESSORY DWELLING
KENNETH D ELLIS
523 W NEW HOPE RD

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
LOCATION:



W
NEW

HOPE
RD

PAXTON 
PL

SHELLEY DR

MDR

MDR

MU

MU

MU

0 100 20050
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-13-22
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST:ACCESSORY DWELLING

SU-13-22
ACCESSORY DWELLING
KENNETH D ELLIS
523 W NEW HOPE RD

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
LOCATION:



W
NEW

HOPE
RD

PAXTON 
PL

SHELLEY DR

R-16

R-12

R-12SF

R-12SF

R-6
CD

0 100 20050
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-13-22
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST:ACCESSORY DWELLING

SU-13-22
ACCESSORY DWELLING
KENNETH D ELLIS
523 W NEW HOPE RD

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
LOCATION:



F



















G











WAYNE AV
SY

CA
MO

RE
ST

WILMINGTON AV

DO
RS

EY
 

ST

0 100 20050
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-15-22
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST: TRIPLEX

SU-15-22
TRIPLEX
C.A.L.M PROPERTIES LLC
235 WAYNE AVE

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
LOCATION:



WAYNE AV
SY

CA
MO

RE
ST

WILMINGTON AV

DO
RS

EY
ST

R-6

R-6

R-6

R-6

O&I-I

R-6

0 100 20050
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-15-22
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST: TRIPLEX

SU-15-22
TRIPLEX
C.A.L.M PROPERTIES LLC
235 WAYNE AVE

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
LOCATION:



WAYNE AV
SY

CA
MO

RE
ST

WILMINGTON AV

DO
RS

EY
ST

OI

HDR

HDR

HDR

HDR

HDR

HDR

0 100 20050
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-15-22
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST: TRIPLEX

SU-15-22
TRIPLEX
C.A.L.M PROPERTIES LLC
235 WAYNE AVE

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
LOCATION:



J



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- / Q / 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS

REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 160A- 269

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain property, 412 E. Walnut Street
NC Pin #3509057190); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid, after

receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the County of Wayne has approved the sale at the September 20, 2022 Board meeting and
conducted the upset bid process; and

WHEREAS, the County has requested concurrence from the City on the sale for the winning offer in the amount
of $5, 000. 00 ( Five Thousand Dollars and no/ 100) from Oliver Design Group, LLC. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares the properties as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General

Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to

convey the property to the Offeror. 
4) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is transferred

and recorded. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 21
sc

day of November, 2022. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cler













K



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- t 1 0

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 2022 EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL

JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT ( JAG) APPLICATION

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized staff to apply for the 2022 Edward Byrne
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant ( JAG) on October 17, 2022, and the grant was awarded
on November 1, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is not a certified disparate area and will be
conducting this grant without a sub -grantee; and

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro Police Department wishes to purchase patrol pistols, 

informational technology equipment, and an EyeDetect instrument with the 2022 JAG
award of $23, 574. 00; and

WHEREAS, all of the items requested are not in a regular budget and are not part

of any other grant. This is a stand- alone grant and does not require any matching funds
from the city. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Goldsboro Police Department and Goldsboro City Manager are authorized
to accept the Award for the 2022 JAG Funds in the amount of $23, 574. 00. 

2. City officials are authorized to execute documents required for the award. 

3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
21s' 

day of
November, 2022. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

id m, Mayor



L



L. 

O

O

0

Z

NE

O

b.
0

N  

t

O

L

U

O

O > 

NN

U  

O

Q) 

c

4 - 

a

v

c

o

E — , Cl

41

v

O

N

p

a

U

Q) 

Q) > 

N

O

U

Q) 

O

O

4 

d

U

N

O

o  

p

rLo

aWO

Z

N

N

Q .

0E

N

Q

c > ° m -

a

W

4-, 

m

c

m

4- 

1

O

1) 

W

M

Q

N °

C

M

6 () 

O

L

U

L

W

40 a

Q

N

W

cQ

W

V

H

U

W '

4-_ 

t

O +

1

N

z (

o

c

c

a

o

N

L

u

U

NOONrocONOCL6oQcooCvEtro
O_ 

Q) pQ) cmv
UOaMMQ) QmUcQ) 

r-
1

w - 

a, 

Q) >- 

O (

o

O

1

E

a) "

O

aJ

E

E

a) 

W

O

Q1

v

v +' +

L °' 

O

0

t

H

cc

N "

O

Q)  

N

L + 

U

X

4—> 

s `" > '_

a

L

@ 41

N

c

c

O

N

ro

c

Q) ° (

o

4 ° 

O '

5

a) 

U

L

L

c

t (

o

0 (

B

U

a

Q) () 

N

a - >'• 

L ° 

U

Q) 

3

0 + 

E° `

L° +, 

3

a, ° 

E

a

t

@° 

L

co

U

a, > 

3

a) 

L

a) ° 

u

v

N

o ,+>+ 

O

c

N° 

cr

v

N

vcuru
0) 

v

L

Oa

O 'txo

E

c +' 

U

a + 

a

U

t

U

N

c

0

U

Z

C

o

o

N

w

N° 

CU (

U

0

3

O >• 

a

O

c

CL

i

c

a ° 

Q) 

a

N

E

N

mc
Q) 

N

to

dA _

o

U

L

L °' 

E

o ' ° 

L

O

L '^ +' >, 

i

N (

6

a

v

c

a

Q

O

rLo

Q) 

p

c .

X

N

M  

LL

U

D

Q) 

E ° 

3

3

4° 

E

L

ro ° 

Q°= 

Y

a° 

If- 

L- 

s

E + 

m  

Q) 

c

v

o

c

t

c

co

ro >, 

O +

1

f

6

v

E' 

r1 (

a

ro

a

0

U

to

Q

N

a

N

3 (

a

Y

c

Q) 

0

0

0" 

L

r

a  

E° 

c

U

L

a

0

0

v

t >, 

4. 

t° 

p '

C > .

t_

a

ru

O

U+

1

v '_ 

N

N

3

c— 

rE

U '

a

3

ro

v

u

Q ' " 

a

t

x -

C

v

E

N

c

N +

1  

E (

Q

N 

O 

L

M

L

c

c6

L

O   

a) 

C) 

L

v -

a

Q

O •- (

o

L ° 

l6

a) 

bA -

0 > 

i

O

Q

U :

t

a) 

4- 

aJ

C

O

c

c- 

U

O

L

O

Ofu +
j , 

v

ru +' > 

Cl)

C7

dJ

E

EO
c  

U

O ,

c

a) 

o
r`

o

O

ma) 

U° 

u

s

o

t

a + 

E

v

v

L

o

L

c

c

o

c

v

3 °

1

o

U

c° 

rQ

Q

o

o

4

m

tLn _ 

0

E

ro

E

v

3

cu

v

c 

v

L

a, 

v° 

co

4. 

L

a) 

N >> 

O

O

U

a

s

O

O

L

aN

U

U

E

In +, 

O

rp

Q

@ - 

a) 

w

U

a) 

Q) 

U

E

Z

ra -

c

c

a) > 

ho

O

v

Q) (

o

O

Q) 

v

L

4

O

awn

Q) 

E

Q) 

O +

L, 

O

rLo

t0

O

O

w

W

m -

a > 

N

o° >, 

3

v - 

u

3

c

a) 

c

U

o

a

4. 

J

N

O

Q) 

a

N

N

U

c +-' -} }' 

N

L

U

4- 

L- 

a

a

c

O

v

C

N

L ` 

a) 

L

c

4- 

c

t

0

Q) '

o

N

4O ° 

O

O

a

O

C

O

Q) 

O

CO (

o _ 

a-+ 

a

L

c +.

r ° 

N

v

1

0

4_ 

E

L

fu

N

U

L

c

O°`- 

O

m

o (

c> 

a) 

vv

W

O+ = -

CO

U

L

tN - 
Q ) — 

U

@

0

CU

0— 

N

do '+
J

CL

Ln

0H
a

Q

bn

Ln

a

Q) 

a

N

O '

L

L

r

O

LL

Q° 

a

Ul

a

a) 

CO _° 

4- 

U ,
c

L

i "

4

E •

C (

0

a

ro ° 

0
m

c

O

C7

L

c

w• 

E

N .

N

T (

d

O

O

Q) 

O

N

N +

v, 

O

ia

v

O > 

tin

N

3 _ 

E *' *' 

rQ

aA

L

6

a) 

a

Q) 

7

a) — 

L

Q) 

N

X

E

Q) 

a) 

oo

a -

0

a

m  (

6 _ 

c

a, '

o

N

O

c

c

L

E

C

c

L

Q) 

a) 

c

U

U (

o

U

U + 

O

N

Q) 

O  

O

co . -

0

N . +

1 +

1 (

0

v

v

O

N

Q

4-

1Q

J



M





N











O



HZw75Qaw00

N

Z

w

Q

U

N

Z

Z

Q

O

Z

N

0

Ln

CCO20OWQ
N

U

O 0o

O

N

CO

M

Ln

J=

LLI

JO

a  

LL

UC7

r

Z

U

0

w

W

LLQO
WUZQZAS

CmW
UOCLU

a-' 

UOaJ0

0

LnY

0

0

ha

ico

OD

o

C

MIn

Lm

H

O

oU

3O

O

O

O

to

tw

0

O

N

0

C

f6

m

aJ

O

L1O

m

cr

CL

c

m

aj

M

0

0

O

O

CN

0

L

O

o

E

0

U

U

v

0

O

c

II ^^ 

V

aJ

cu

i

E

O

cuL

7

00> 

LJ

U

a

y

U

M

4- 

cu

O

C

OC7

CO

Ur

E

OU

O

f0

ra0- 

mv

CLv

0
OU

v

U

UL

V) 

O

L

O

G

o

U

Z

C

OU

0

O

O0

coof

L

OaiU
DW

OQ

L

n

0

L

Z

O

O

a) 

a

A(

O

4.

1

c

0

O

O

L

Q7
W

p

o: 

Z> 

a) 

c

o

0

GOIn

U

c

aIn
Vf

VU

cn

ai

C

O

0

LL

c

c

c

N0
O

C

cu

7

U

W

v

Ly

a

O

aJ

in

L

O

y
j

L

UJ

U

i

a

4' 

n

OC

ccMo
O

cO
O

w

OLL

0LL C

CC

w

U

0

0yj
E

O

W

E

W

w

Q

O

H= 

L

O

6CL

w

vu

U

O

C73
z

LA

z

m

aJ

LccaU

U

m

NMa) 

CLmLU

MNMNM1

a) OCLOCLCcuCEOuLJ

N0NNIn
Ln

a, mCLMNONOcCQCA
r-
1CJ1r -

iNa) N
NmCLaoWr -

IONO



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

October 2022 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item P



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
October 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  November 11, 2022 
 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) held its annual awards luncheon on October 20th.   
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on October 

11th.   
• Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) met for a regular monthly meeting on October 5th and provided volunteer services 

at Taste of Wayne on October 8th.   
 

• Community Relations Activities:  
1. Staff attended a 175th city anniversary meeting on October 3rd. 
2. Department meetings & trainings were held on October 5th, 12th ,19th, and 24th.  
3. Staff attended the River of the Year @ the Neuse River on October 17th. 
4. Staff attended the CALM Executive Board meeting on October 18th. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended the monthly Region 10 Continuum of Care meeting on October 12th.  
2. Staff a bid conference for the CDBG-CV water tower project on October 13th.  
3. Staff held a housing rehabilitation meeting with Inspections on October 31st. 
4. Staff met with City Managers to review HUD monitoring report on October 19th.  
5. Staff engaged in 4 phone/virtual consults with HUD Representative for the month of October.      

       
• The Department received zero (0) housing complaints and nineteen (19) requests for assistance for the month of 

October. *Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0   1 
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19   44 

 
2021 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 0 4 2 0 4 5 1 8 9 2 2 0 3 
Consumer & Other 
Requests 

2 8 21 10 12 9 12 10 16 10 30 13 13 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
October 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  November 11, 2022 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

None to report  
 
Assistance with Resources 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 6 Informed City’s CDBG Rehab. Program will begin soon 
First-Time Homebuyer 
 

6 Provided program information and/or application packet 

Rent & Utility Assistance 3 Provided community resource listing 
Summer Youth Program 1 Advised a decision has not been made 
Christmas gifts from 
GPD 

1 Referred to GPD 

Seeking copy of birth 
certificate 

1 Call returned but could not leave voicemail to refer to Wayne County 
courthouse 

Interested in putting 
house into HUD 
program 

1 Returned call and left voicemail 

Total Requests: 19  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
October 2022 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: October 15, 2022 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 6 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or business 
interest regarding downtown. 

• Working with the ACM to facilitate administrative needs of the GWTA Roof Addition  
• South Center Street Development discussions with ACM/CM and potential consultant. 
• Union Station discussions regarding stabilization, fair market value and potential reuse. 
• Board training and work planning for 2023. 
• Neighborhood Revitalization Task Force discussions to identify potential actions/steps to address blight. 
• Merchant/Property Information Mgmt – Integrating to new website. In testing phase.  

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           
• Conducted a follow-up call with Randall Gross, a potential consultant for downtown residential development 

needs, specifically in the 300 and 400 blocks of S. Center St. 

• Participated in an educational call regarding New Market Tax Credits and identified potential qualifying projects. 

• Planned and facilitated annual Board retreat. 

• Staff is working with IT to determine placement of security cameras in public parking lots to improve visibility 
and address safety concerns. 

• Erin is participating in the 2022-2023 Leadership Wayne Program. Attended orientation, retreat and first training 
session. 

• Erin attended the Leading Wayne luncheon. 

• Staff attended an initial NCFF planning meeting to determine a 2023 festival date – September 9, 2023 

• Staff is working on updated downtown event rental guidelines for the HUB and adjacent lot. 

• De-installation and Installation of public art on October 13th and 14th. Final piece installed Nov. 4th.     
• HUB Events: First Responders Event Oct 6th, Taste of Wayne and Biking for Breast Cancer Oct 8th , RIDE 

the City Oct 15th, Walk to DeFeet Dementia Oct 22nd  
DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

• DGDC Merchant Committee requested a parking forum and conducted a holiday safety workshop to prepare 
merchants for safe holiday practices.  

• DGDC Merchant Meeting on October 3rd & DGDC Annual Retreat on October 25th & 26th  
• Wellness Wednesday every Wednesday in October and Movie Nights Oct 14th and 28th  

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• Erin will be participating in Leadership Wayne, October 2022 through May 2023.  
• Grant solicitations for Duke Energy & Wells Fargo. Exploring Additional Grants  
• Downtown Lights Up – Nov 22nd  
• Upcoming HUB Events – Luminaries for Love on December 18th hosted by Wayne Co. Chapter Firefighters 

Burned Children Fund 
Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 

• New Businesses Coming Soon to 116 – 120 E Mulberry St 
• Arts Council Relocation is Underway – working to identify a new location.  
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes: 14,498  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
October 2022 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  11-14-22 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• City Council awarded contract to Fred Smith Company at the September 12th Council Meeting 
contingent upon NCDOT approval of contract award; 

• NCDOT submitted the concurrence to award on October 4th; 
• Notice to proceed date set for October 31st with a contract completion date of February 28, 2023. 
 

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• Final payment to the contractor was made on August 19, 2022; 
• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 

 
2017 Wastewater System Improvements – FB2020-002  

• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash 
Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street; 
and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital 
Campus; 

• Staff working with contractor on final payment. 
 
Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk  

• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to 
Alabama Avenue then down Alabama Avenue to Oak Street. 

 
2017 New Hope Road Water Infrastructure Design Fees 

• The City of Goldsboro was awarded an ARPA grant in the amount of $300,200 for design fees. 
 
Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 

• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering 
report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 

• PER/EID Report submitted  to DWI for review and approval; 
• Project is a candidate to be included in the Mount Olive Pickle (MOP) Plant Expansion Project and 

staff is working with MOP, WithersRavenel, and TA Loving through the design process. 
 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections have been completed for 2022. 

 
 



2 

Phase III Wastewater System Improvements 
• Staff is completing final design in-house; 
• Staff submitted a new application during the Fall funding round and is awaiting a decision. 

 
Water System Asset Inventory and Assessment 

• WithersRavenel project work in progress. 
 
Wastewater System Asset Inventory and Assessment 

• WithersRavenel project work in progress. 
 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• CDM Smith is waiting on scope approval from DWI. 
 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Pilot area work has begun; 
• Staff continues to work with CDM Smith on project data and details. 

 
2” Galvanized Water Line Project 

• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395. 
 
Water Treatment Plant Assessment 

• Final report is complete. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
OCTOBER 2022 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: November 14, 2022 
 

 

FY 21-22
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues September-21 Adjusted Budget September-22 Collected
General Fund 7,656,746$      46,526,373$        7,197,832$      15.47%
Utility Fund 5,695,527        23,515,840          5,005,637        21.29%
Downtown District Fund 25,857             117,019               15,106             12.91%
Occupancy Tax Fund 258,087           1,191,450            259,524           21.78%
Stormwater Fund 678,360           1,981,528            756,647           38.19%
     Total 14,314,577$    73,332,209$        13,234,745$    18.05%

Expenditures
General Fund 10,664,934$    46,526,373$        13,036,554$    28.02%
Utility Fund 2,735,818        23,515,840 3,465,377 14.74%
Downtown District Fund 25,481             117,019 17,899             15.30%
Occupancy Tax Fund 99,155             1,191,450 99,593 8.36%
Stormwater Fund 462,216           1,981,528 397,126 20.04%
     Total 13,987,603$    73,332,209$        17,016,550$    23.20%

FY 21-22
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

September-21 Adjusted Budget September-22 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 3,565,781$      19,271,704$        3,470,006$      18.01%
Charges for Services 6,688,759        30,030,307          6,523,857        21.72%
Revenue Other Agencies 805,844           16,372,366          751,472           4.59%
Other Revenues 2,452,233        2,536,030            1,657,160        65.34%
Fund Balance -                   1,792,806            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 801,960           3,328,996            832,249           25.00%
     Total 14,314,577$    73,332,209$        13,234,745$    18.05%

Expenditures
Labor 6,856,110$      29,746,929$        8,592,358$      28.88%
Non-Labor 7,131,493        43,585,280          8,424,192        19.33%
     Total 13,987,603$    73,332,209$        17,016,550$    23.20%

FY 21-22 Actual Total 
Collections Actual September-22 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 27,778$           1,735$                  7,425$             
Surplus 154,548$         -$                      3,876$             

FY 22-23

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 22-23

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Prepared Date: 11/4/22 12:00 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 11/14/22 8:09 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 10/31/2022 9/30/2022 10/31/2021 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 1,929,067.56$              2,795,764.94$              1,295,226.64$              0.00%
PNC - Money Market 7,455,580.96$              7,445,055.90$              4,524,563.10$              1.68%
PNC - Debit Account 656.02$                          980.01$                          916.15$                          0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 4,112,104.06$              4,108,113.96$              11,075,360.05$            1.27%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 252,015.64$                  251,388.18$                  249,719.25$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 8,880,001.68$              8,857,892.71$              4,406,888.62$              n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,408,555.08$              4,397,480.10$              4,368,204.81$              n/a
NCCMT - MM - Street Bonds 2018 -$                                 -$                                 1,611,820.48$              n/a
Truist MMA 11,018,627.86$            11,000,581.64$            -$                                 1.93%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock 414,259.57$                  414,256.05$                  1,650,584.01$              0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,398,026.28$              2,398,005.91$              -$                                 0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 1,869,975.43$              1,869,589.05$              0.24%
Totals 42,738,870.14$           43,539,108.45$           29,183,283.11$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
October 31, 2022

Cash & Investment FY2023 10-31-22 11/14/2022 8:10 PM



Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report - October 2022
Prepared: TLW 11/10/22
Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Granting 
Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description

Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget 
Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount 
Rec'd  Project 

to Date 
 Current 

Amount Spent  

 Amount 
Spent to 

Project to 
Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) 
Cash Flow Fund Orgn Note Dept

HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 328,479$        328,479$        -$                262,778$        -$                283,528$        (20,750)$         C2101 3224 Comm. Rel.
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$        214,732$        -$                49,554$          -$                89,438$          (39,883)$         C2101 3225 Comm. Rel.
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,137$        351,137$        -$                170,143$        -$                244,815$        (74,672)$         C2101 3226 Comm. Rel.
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 237,076$        237,076$        -$                -$                -$                72,377$          (72,377)$         C2101 3227 Comm. Rel.
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$        427,303$        -$                31,056$          -$                153,999$        (122,942)$       C2101 3244 Comm. Rel.
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,122$        354,122$        -$                86,510$          -$                114,813$        (28,303)$         C2101 3228 Comm. Rel.
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 250,738$        250,738$        -$                -$                -$                54,908$          (54,908)$         C2101 3229 Comm. Rel.
HUD CDBG ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$        907,913$        -$                -$                -$                600$                (600)$              C2101 3245 Comm. Rel.

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$        100,000$        -$                96,570$          -$                96,804$          (234)$              C2101 3302 Comm. Rel.
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$        150,000$        -$                79,175$          -$                91,175$          (12,000)$         22 3218 Comm. Rel.
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$     4,604,077$     -$                5,435,033$     -$                4,179,246$     1,255,787$     R1102 Finance
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 188,813$        200,946$        341$                226,223$        -$                106,381$        119,842$        P3101 Police
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant State S 1/3/2019 21,366$          21,366$          -$                18,408$          -$                18,408$          -$                P3102 Police
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$          47,003$          -$                28,120$          -$                28,120$          -$                P3102 Police
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$          34,766$          -$                13,906$          -$                13,906$          -$                P3102 Police
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 108,628$        108,628$        -$                87,179$          -$                87,179$          (0)$                   P3106 Police
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$     7,189,383$     -$                7,385,809$     -$                6,527,315$     858,494$        R1103 Downtown Dev.

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, 5 Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$        202,083$        -$                202,083$        -$                202,083$        -$                R1104 Fire
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$        966,688$        -$                966,688$        -$                966,688$        (0)$                   R1105 City Manager

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$          25,750$          -$                25,750$          -$                25,750$          -$                R1106 T&T
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 94,616$          94,616$          -$                19,681$          -$                19,681$          -$                R1106 Parks & Rec.

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$     8,813,514$     22,109$          8,813,514$     -$                -$                8,813,514$     R1107 Finance
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$     9,083,790$     -$                4,851,571$     -$                8,519,172$     (3,667,601)$   S1102 * Engineering
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$     1,259,802$     -$                639,892$        -$                659,235$        (19,343)$         S1103 * Engineering

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$     8,684,163$     -$                8,695,113$     -$                8,367,780$     327,333$        S1104 Engineering
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. Rehab Private P 10/11/2017 598,574$        598,574$        -$                598,574$        -$                596,216$        2,357$            S1105 Engineering
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$     30,000$          -$                30,000$          -$                30,000$          -$                S1106 Engineering

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004 State S 1/24/2022 300,000$        304,500$        -$                -$                36,325$          292,625$        (292,625)$       S1107 8481 Engineering
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$        101,500$        -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                S1108 8481 Engineering

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install. Federal F 6/6/2019 3,610,000$     3,717,200$     -$                35,000$          -$                265,513$        (230,513)$       W1111 Engineering
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$     2,114,307$     -$                1,484,909$     -$                1,517,550$     (32,641)$         W1112 Engineering
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$     6,029,395$     -$                30,000$          -$                25,000$          5,000$            W1113 Engineering

Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$   11,150,000$   -$                -$                18,000$          376,000$        (376,000)$       G1102 City Manager
Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$          80,000$          -$                32,691$          -$                -$                32,691$          G1103 Fire

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$        632,943$        -$                547,943$        -$                251,072$        296,871$        G1104 Parks & Rec.
Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$     5,048,522$     -$                5,046,649$     -$                4,980,164$     66,485$          G1105 Engineering
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$     6,417,326$     -$                6,417,323$     5,420$            6,232,150$     185,173$        G1106 City Manager

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 30,570$          30,570$          -$                39,576$          -$                25,487$          14,088$          G1107 Parks & Rec.
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 15,728$          15,728$          -$                15,977$          -$                13,100$          2,877$            G1108 Comm. Rel.
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 56,351$          56,351$          1,267$            59,173$          -$                16,791$          42,382$          P3104 Police

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,372,871$     1,372,871$     61,217$          1,250,213$     52,869$          225,079$        1,025,134$     T2201 Public Works
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$     1,151,600$     -$                1,136,500$     8,510$            8,510$            1,127,990$     F3111 Fire

Total 82,769,816$   83,509,461$   84,934$          54,909,283$   121,124$        45,778,657$   9,130,626$     

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2022-10- OCT Grants 2022-09 October 11/14/2022 7:55 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Fees & Dues -$                   (234)$                    
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Education Reimbursement 234$                  -$                      

Transfers - Oct 2022 - Human Resources 234$                  (234)$                    

GEC Felicia Brown Operational Supplies -$                   (2,898)$                 
GEC Felicia Brown Insurance Deductible Claims 2,898$               -$                      

Transfers - Oct 2022 - GEC 2,898$              (2,898)$                

Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Operational Supplies -$                   (210)$                    
Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Travel -$                   (525)$                    
Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Postage 210$                  -$                      
Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Other Training -$                   (156)$                    
Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Downtown Projects 681$                  -$                      

Transfers - Oct 2022 - Downtown Development 891$                  (891)$                    

PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   -$                      
Transfers - Oct 2022 - PW Buildings & Grounds -$                   -$                      

Fire Ron Stempien Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   -$                      
Fire Ron Stempien Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                   (79)$                      
Fire Ron Stempien Vehicle Fuel 801$                  -$                      
Fire Ron Stempien Building Maintenance -$                   (801)$                    
Fire Ron Stempien Thermal Imaging Camera 79$                    -$                      

Transfers - Oct 2022 - Fire 880$                  (880)$                    

Police Mike West Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   (4,000)$                 
Police Mike West Operational Supplies -$                   (3,885)$                 
Police Mike West Insurance Deductible Claims 3,885$               -$                      
Police Mike West Administrative Car 20,544$            -$                      
Police Mike West Vehicle Equipment -$                   (5,544)$                 
Police Mike West Garbage Packer -$                   (11,000)$              

Transfers - Oct 2022 - Police 24,429$            (24,429)$              

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies -$                   (3,000)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Fees & Dues 3,000$               -$                      

Transfers - Oct 2022 - Parks & Recreation 3,000$              (3,000)$                

Debt Service Catherine Gwynn City Hall Loan Payment -$                   (79,900)$              
Debt Service Catherine Gwynn Paramount Loan Payment 79,900$            -$                      

Transfers - Oct 2022 - Debt Service 79,900$            (79,900)$              

Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Operational Supplies 1,000$               -$                      
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Contract Services -$                   (1,000)$                 

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_1 Transfer Summary Oct 11/14/2022 7:47 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Transfers - Oct 2022 - Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory 1,000$              (1,000)$                

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular 2,300$               -$                      
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                   (3,800)$                 
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Education Reimbursement 1,200$               -$                      
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Cell Phone Stipend 300$                  -$                      

Transfers - Oct 2022 - Distribution & Collections 3,800$              (3,800)$                

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                   (300)$                    
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Cell Phone Stipend 300$                  -$                      

Transfers - Oct 2022 - Stormwater 300$                  (300)$                    
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Oct 2022 117,332$          (117,332)$            
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2022-Oct 2022 192,176$          (192,176)$            
Control Totals

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_1 Transfer Summary Oct 11/14/2022 7:47 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
October 2022   
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: November 10, 2022 
 

    

▪ The cause of fire incidents was determined 57.1% of the time. 42.9% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   

  

▪ The average response time of first arriving unit was 3:10.   
  

▪ The full response within 8 minutes occurred 98.3 % of all calls.   
  

▪ There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service deaths.   

  

▪ The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage.   

 
▪  Fire prevention and community service activities including Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 

County, Station Tours, Truck Displays, Safety Day at Lowe’s, Fall Festivals, Trunk or Treat events, and the 

STEM Festival. We reached 384 Adults and 1,557 Children with fire prevention materials.  
  

 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    

1  

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231   211 2109 

Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5   4 1 3 3 1 1   4 36 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73   80 794 

Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31   25 245 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59   47 468 

Other: 66 53 68 55 54 83 60 60 70 68   57 567 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835   1911 19113 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5   3 26 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135   126 1263 

2021 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 234 173 227 214 251 240 227 229 240 244 265 237 232 2781 
Structure Fires: 6 4 6 4 3 3 3 5 6  2 7 6 5 55 

EMS Calls: 89 68 87 83 106 106 84 104 86 86 82 88 89 1069 
Vehicle Accidents: 36 30 34 35 35 40 33 33 33 40 40 33 35 422 

Fire Alarms: 49 31 41 40 42 41 54 45 56 52 65 38 46 554 
Other: 54 40 59 52 65 50 53 42 59 64 71 72 57 681 

Training Hours: 3006 3155 3010 2730 2029 1894 1633 1833 1600 1923 1591 1075 2123 25479 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 0 1 0 1 6 3 3 2 4 2 1 2 24 

Inspections: 121 157 217 172 180 237 194 204 179 160 155 109 174 2085 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
October 2022 
Date Prepared:  November 4, 2022    
 
 
Human Resources  

• Revised Personnel Policy Manual to include USSERA General Statute to meet their guidelines and 
updated Fire Career Progression Policy 

• Attended Neogov Conference October 4-7 (Susan) 
• Completed Benchmarking 2.0 Project Survey information Survey 
• Sent out City Wide Training for Hurricane Preparedness 
• Assisted Department Heads and Supervisors with Evaluation process to ensure consistency and up-

to-date information with employee evaluations. 
• Coordinated meeting with Brad regarding Coda request and the ability to run reports through 

Banner using Informer 
• Reviewed and Approved questions for position recruitments 
• Resolved and Updated Performance Evaluation hierarchy for evaluation process. 
• Attended Introduction to Employment Law Class (Christie) 
• Preparing for upcoming  Strategic Plan Benchmarking 2.0 Project Workshop on November 7, 2022 
• Submitted Police Officer Scholarship Recipient application information for payment processing 
• Completing Salary Benchmark Survey for Engineering position 
• Promoting Drink More Water Initiative 
• Setup of Laserfische files and Implementing Electronic Filing System 
• Completed Walk to the Beach Competition for September 1 – October 5, 2022 
• Completed Health/Benefits Fair scheduled for October 6, 2022 
• Completed Supplemental & State Health Plan 2023 Open Enrollment  

 
Safety   

• October City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections 
• Safety inspection at Compost Facility 
• Safety inspection at Paramount Theater 
• October 3 – Meeting at Coley Center concerning Seniors using the facility 
• October 3 – Meeting with Chief Stempien at Station 3 
• October 6 – Assisted with the Employee Benefits Fair 
• October 11 – Meeting with Rod Pace at Compost Facility 
• October 14 – Meeting with Maintenance supervisor concerning the Paramount Roof construction. 
• Met with recreation staff of Herman Park concerning the center being shut down 
• Federal OSHA injury report filed for 2021 
• Assisted Park Maintenance on interview panel 
• October 24 – Safety and Accident Review Committee Meeting. Heard no cases, just meeting 

updates for the year. 
• October 20 – Defensive Driving Course. 9 city employees passed the course. 



2 

• October 20 – Met with Assistant City Manager at Herman Park center to go over moving 
equipment out of the building  

• October 17, 18, 27, & 28 – Accident investigations 
• Field Safety for private contractors 
• Field Safety with crews 
• Daily office duties 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 239 clinic visits this month. There were 5 Non-DOT, 1 DOT, 6 promotion and 3 
instant drug screenings for new hires and 0 Non-DOT and 2 DOT post-accident drug screen this month.  
There were 12 random DOT drug screenings and 3 Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test completed.  
 

Health Training Sessions: 
• Health Fair- Employee Step challenge- recorded steps 
• Flu vaccine administration began Oct 5th 
• Flu vaccine clinics at Heath Fair Oct 6th,  Public Works Oct 7th ,and  Public Safety Complex Oct 21st  
• Annual required Bloodborne Pathogen Training at Public Utilities: Oct 5th at WWT, Oct 12th at Compost, ad 

Oct 26th at WRF 
• Breast Cancer Awareness Month- sent email to employees- Breast cancer signs and symptoms and 

importance of mammograms 
• Annual Hearing Booth Calibration: Oct 19th  

 
Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  

• 7 employees Quarantined/COVID positive  
• 2 employees started FMLA  
• 33 Total Workplace injury reports related to mold exposure at Herman Park Center and Police Dept 
• 46 routine Blood pressure checks 
• 70 Flu vaccines administered 
• 5 Hepatitis vaccines administered  
• Assisted 3 with finding Primary Care Provider 
• 2 referrals to Specialist for evaluation 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427 424 422 427 427   423 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143 143 144 137 125   129 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570 567 566 564 552   552 
Male  411 412 409 411 420 428 426 425 429 417   419 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142 141 141 135 135   133 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hispanic or 
Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 
 

340 339 338 334 324   330 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204 203 202 206 207   198 



3 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19 18 18 16 16   18 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2   2 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6   5 
Vacancies  24 25 30 31 31 33 26 36 34 35   30 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392 121 317 146 309   262 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173 92 97 476 126   166 
New Hires  6 4 9 9 7 9 7 7 7 4   7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3 0 2 6 8   3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8 8 6 7 5   7 
Retirements  2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 0   2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1   2 

Turnover Rate  2.4
% 

3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6
% 

2.4% 1.9% 2.1% 1.4%   2.2% 

Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2 3 4 0 0   3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0   0 

FFCRA Leave  76 7 1 1 9 14 23 3 9 7   16 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 13 13 13   11 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total 
Employment 

569 566 562 562 557 554 550 550 544 537 534 
 

537 553 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18 19 21 26 23 22 27 24 20 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267 299 233 150 164 204 173 131 203 
Applicant Notices 214 203 167 66 71 177 94 140 106 196 17 

 
1 132 

 
New Hires  8 2 1 3 4 3 2 8 1 3 1 9 3 

Resignations 1 2 3 3 6 6 7 8 6 8 3 4 5 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1.00 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 .27 
Turnover Rate  .18% .88% .89% .53% 1.44% 1.08% 1.09% 1.45% 1.10 1.49 .19 

 
.74 

 
.94% 

Vehicle Accidents 2 5 2 7 3 1 3 1 0 3 4 
 

2 3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 4 2 3 5 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 2.1 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5 5 2 1 20 9 2 5 9 

Telework 27  28 25 23 13 12 11 11 11 11 11 11 17 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
October 2022 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: November 7, 2022 
 

• Repaired damaged fiber on Ash Street. 
• Deployed Water Treatment Plant, Compost Plant, and Water Reclamation Facility Computers. 
• Completed Network prep for TC Coley and installed new network equipment. 
• Deployed Public Works Computers. 
• Four staff attended NCLGISA Fall Conference. 
• Resolved large scale network issues. 
• Deployed laptops to Engineering and Inspections. 
• Replaced IT Network Attached Storage device. 
• Setup Mobile Unit for use by GPD. 
• Completed Test DB setup for Banner. 
• Resolved SharePoint issue and setup Public Utilities. 

 
2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749   494 4,936 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686   470 4,698 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643   526  

 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

562 564 634 468 473 500 530 526 374 439 348 280 
 

475 5,698 

Tickets 
Closed 

447 615 612 436 528 571 490 547 384 388 306 327 471 5,651 

Open  
Tickets 

473 422 444 476 421 350 390 369 359 410 
 

452 405 414  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Oct 2022 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 11/02/22 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for October totaled $10,670,401.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our 
local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $41,522.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $4,500 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $2,640. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,300. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 587 inspections for the month.  During the month of October, nine (9) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 306 permits were issued for the month.    Fifty-seven (57) plan reviews 
were completed for October. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.7
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.5
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $472 $4.4M $341 $1.3M $0 $300 $3.1M $1.1M $1.5M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.2
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $41
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 599
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 314
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 56

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.9 $18.2 $6 $4.4 $5.9 $6.4 $7.5 $4.9 $8.4 $7.7 $6.5 $4.8 $7.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $6.8 $16.3 $2.5 $1.1 $4.8 $3.9 $4.3 $3.7 $5.7 $5.3 $4.7 $2.9 $5.2
Residential $ (K) $1.2M $900 $1.2M $250 $1.1M $3.1M $1.4M $1.M $480 $2.5M $1.7M $428 $1.3M
Misc $ (M) $1 $1.9 $3.5 $3.4 $1.1 $2.5 $3.2 $1.1 $2.7 $2.4 $1.8 $2.0 $2.2
Permit Fee $ (K) $26.6 $32.5 $57 $34 $21 $38 $29 $26 $36 $45 $28 $24 $33.1
Inspections 398 462 625 538 483 424 483 472 590 681 529 583 522
Permits Issued 215 295 359 296 254 308 324 267 311 332 262 242 289
Plan Reviews 48 94 71 68 45 51 59 50 45 45 93 26 58



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
October 2022 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 11/14/2022 

 
 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
• October capacity unrestricted; masks and distancing recommended, not required. 
• October activity included 17 rental/use days, including 10 public performances. 

o Chase Padgett Performance: Performing Arts Series 
o Nobuntu Performance: Performing Arts Series 
o Joshua Lozoff Performance: Performing Arts Series 
o CST: Addams Family Performances 
o Fire Princess Pageant…they became a new sponsor 
o Miss Goldsboro Pageant 
o Free Musical Theatre Performance; ECU School of Theatre and Dance 
o Rocky Horror Picture Show (likely to become an annual event) 
o Private corporate events 

• October COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 0 days, 0 public perfs. 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

o Roof Repairs Complete, Warranty back in effect. 
o In Progress: 

 HVAC: 
• Mini-split installation waiting on equipment delivery 
• Controls upgrade: quote for essential system upgrades being reviewed. 

 Wheelchair lift – to be resolved with new elevator service vendor, Southern Elevator. 
 

 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $64,232:   Labor: $29,331 / Operations: $12,367 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $22,534 
Revenues: -$27,531:   Tickets: -$21,726 / Rentals: -$2,750 / Concession: $3,055   
 

  Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-
23 Apr-23 May-

23 Jun-23 FY 23 
Total 

Average 

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232                 $198,891 $49,723 

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531                 $63,797 $15,949 

  21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-
Mar 22-Apr 22-

May 22-Jun FY 22 
Total 

Average 

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919 $27,119 $73,052 $65,217 $56,198 $72,730 $701,308 $58,442 

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668 $10,947 $35,192 $57,493 $56,429 $55,513 $455,521 $37,960 

 
 
 

 



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
October - 2022 
Prepared By: Stephanie Martin/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 11/7/22 

 
• NC USTA Singles League State Championships were held October 6-9, 2022.  Tennis courts in Wayne, 

Greene and Lenoir counties were used for play – 114 teams  
 
• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted eleven (11) events during this month – 1,199 guests and ten (10) 

City events – 665 guests 
 

• GEC brought in $11,091 in revenue during this month 
 

• There are no weekends open (available) to rent at the GEC for the rest of 2022 
 

• 4th Annual Ride the City held on October 15th - 59 participants registered 
 

• Games for our fall sports of Youth Soccer, Youth Flag Football, Youth T-Ball, Youth Softball and Youth 
Baseball and Adult Flag Football were played throughout this month  
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted several tournaments this month: 4 Day Movement -52 golfers; The Lord’s 
Table -68 golfers; GGC Ryder Cup Challenge -16 golfers 
 

• Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) hosted the NC Girls LaxFest (lacrosse tournament) on October 29th 
& 30th – 48 teams 
 

• Bryan MSCX hosted several high school cross country meets this month – 500 participants 
 

• Herman Park Tennis Courts hosted several high school matches and tournaments this month, including 
the 1A Eastern Regional Tennis Tournament 
 

• Berkeley Memorial Park hosted two (2) USSSA softball tournaments this month – 500 participants 
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during this month – 518 participants  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean all park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff and Seasonal staff 

 
  



 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT 
N
O
V 

D
E
C 

AVG 

Herman Park 
Recreation Center                            

Program Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050  $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720  $1,710     $4,088 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520  $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0   $0     $1,088 

Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159  1475 470  224   286  468     395 

Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142  $8,344  
$17,670   $8,333 $4,855  $5,048     $7,423 

                            
WA Foster 
Recreation Center                           

Program Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453  $3,750 $1,475  $1,185  $1,108  $1,258     $1,335 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163  $1,653 $2,950 $1,025  $998   $1,238     $1,861 

Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814  2495 2268   2814  1825  1719     1971 

Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952  $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798  $11,022     $16,180 

                            
T.C. Coley Community 
Center                           

Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880  $948  $525 $698  $855   $585     $650 

Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80  $0  $100  $0  $0  $42     $207 

                            
Specialized 
Recreation                           

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0      $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0     $0 

Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360  220  203  211  222  230     187 

Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039  $4,761  $6,253  $2,946 $2,064  $10,867     $5,393 

                            
Senior Programs & 
Pools                           

Program Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807  $8,484 $4,936 $2,594  $190 $190     $1,862 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0  $0 $0   $0 $0     $0 

Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243  3492  3287  1870  268  256       1,241  

Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437  $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284
  

$5,555     $10,711 

                            
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, 
Bryan MSCX 

                          

                          

Program Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384  $2,790 $3,155  $27,200  $27,200
  

$2,990     $11,808 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75  $0 $0 $0   $0 $0     $23 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914  36785  11450  13125  13125  23100       22,131  

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794  $10,597 $16,635 $11,609  $9,099 $8,745     $16,530 

                            
Golf Course                           

Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934  $61,883  
$51,301  $56,058 $50,749 $58,366     $51,135 

Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279  $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513
  

$41,316     $45,813 

Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936  1976 1816  1401  1291  1699       1607  

Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655  $12,773 -$5,999  $24,100  $7,236 $17,051     $5,322 

                            
Special Events                           

Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $1,975  $0  $0  $300 $370     $265 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0  110  0  $0  75  766       255  

Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0  $1,599  $0  $0  $472 $472     $506 

                            



 

TOTAL REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $82,120 $66,707 $
0 

$0 $74,113 

TOTAL EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $
0 

$0 $102,763 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR 
  

$741,131 
                     

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,027,630           

 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of 
these costs are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center               
Program Revenue $220 $530 $390 $230 $5,860 $1,250 $810 $410 $120 $305 $270 $150 $879 

Rental Revenue  $0 $330 $0 $1,110 $270 $750 $1,245 $170 $1,550 $1,350 $70 $1,035 $657 

Facility Usage 152 193 287 187 294 405 455 172 249 358 259 252 272 

Expenditures $3,487 $1,054 $1,538 $405 $384 $1304 $12,189 $15,981 $5,095 $4,812 $5,042 $9,172 $5,039 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $185 $190 $535 $195 $250 $2,110 $825 $140 $120 $85 $50 $120 $400 

Rental Revenue $450 $0 $285 $690 $2100 $1,200 $538 $1193 $1,110 $750 $3,100 $1,200 $1,058 

Facility Usage 660 924 1304 1,378 1,475 1,478 1,793 867 1043 983 1,171 1,308 1,199 

Expenditures $4,429 $2,992 $4,610 $8,413 $3,586 $7,447 $20,580 $25,305 $14,427 $19,173 $16,232 $22,925 $12,510 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $578 $450 $450 $585 $578 $578 $607 $578 $578 $705 $548 $578 $568 

Expenses $4,797 $1416 $0 $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $4041 $0 $0 $0 $1,989 $1,174 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42 $0 $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 0 73 92 0 5 31 $34 18 103 178 114 136 65 

Expenditures $1,048 $737 $1,049 $0 $0 $0 $461 $288 $2945 $5,523 $5,857 $8,599 $2,203 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $140 $140 $140 $140 $897 $4,707 $7,690 $2284 $140 $1,168 $140 $140 $1,477 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25 

Facility Usage 200 371 310 720 608 2,245 1,176 1,251 448 525 268 302 702 

Expenditures $1,591 $2435 $1,048 $1,642 $6,203 $13,483 $22,041 $17,647 $7,327 $762 $854 $1,992 $6,419 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $1,550 $10,200 $14,891 $3,760 $7,185 $4,880 $9,056 $13,708 $1,755 $2,860 $21,090 $4,110 $7,920 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $400 $200 $1,675 $450 $1,555 $480 $1,305 $0 0 $750 $650 $2,400 $766 

Facility Usage 8,612 13,825 15,500 14,339 29,339 15,533 8,476 7,525 11,253 43,298 30,123 30,123 18,996 

Expenditures $6,866 $9.515 $11,471 $28,210 $33,191 $33,230 $23,614 $24,926 $17,977 $72,084 $21,726 $21,976 $25,399 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $36,583 $9,209 $53,613 $66,926 $72,876 $54,559 $61,379 $59,850 $66.788 $62,129 $34,965 $53,716 $52,716 

Expenditures $32,349 $35,969 $36,825 $40,143 $54,594 $67,883 $32,255 $48,088 $50,243 $38,778 $38,890 $43,335 $43,281 

Rounds of Golf 486 596 1,714 2,120 2,641 2,421 2,556 2,819 2,097 2,232 2,087 1752 1,960 

Net $4.235 -26,760 $16,788 $26,782 $18,282 -13,325 $29,124 $11,762 $16,545 $23,351 -3,925 $10,361 $13,895 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,666 $979 $170 $0 $475 $0 $0 $358 

Participation 0 0 434 0 0 153 0 44 0 50 30 6200 576 

Expenditures $0 0 $171 $110 $110 $1,980 $1,538 $110 $110 $1,630 $110 $370 $520 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $40,106 $21,249 $71,979 $74,086 $91,571 $73,260 $84,734 $78,503 $72,161 $69,902 $60,925 $63,449 $66,827 

TOTAL EXPENSES $54,567 $54,118 $56,712 $80,77, $98,069 $125,327 $112,612 $136,276 $98,014 $142,762 $88,711 $110,378 $96,545 

TOTAL REVENUE  $801,924            

TOTAL EXPENSES  $1,158,537            

 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
October 2022 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  November 9, 2022 

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   
Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA 
Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to 
Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D 
updates. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 0 3 4 0 6 2 3 1 5 24 2
Subdivison 0 0 2 2 0 4 0 1 1 0 10 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 2 4 3 5 2 1 3 2 2 24 2

Special Use 3 1 0 1 2 1 3 3 2 2 18 2
Historic District Commission

Commission Review 1 1 1 0 2 0 3 1 0 1 10 1
Staff Review 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 0 0 11 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 0 0 0 85 79 47 64 55 330 41

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0 $4,565 $2,755 $3,675 $2,924 $13,919 $1,740

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 18 13 3 7 9 6 15 18 162 14

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 102 202 88 127 266 79 96 45 1153 96

Bags of Litter Picked 
Up 202 165 222 286 198 400 326 422 332 247 2800 233

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

2021 

 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 4 4 1 0 1 10 1
Subdivison 6 3 2 0 0 2 13 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 0 3 0 1 3 4 0 2 0 2 2 17 1

Special Use 2 1 0 3 3 1 10 1

Historic District Commission
Commission 

Review
0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0

Staff Review 1 0 0 1 0 2 1 0 1 0 3 2 11 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 1 36 68 43 33 58 37 35 19 0 330 41

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $1,420.00 $2,430 $2,190 $1,740 $3,025 $1,965 $1,770 $955 -$   $15,670 $1,959

Tagged 
Vehicles

25 15 12 21 23 25 11 24 15 1 0 22 194 16

Illegal Signs 
Removed

52 77 380 36 30 174 147 155 189 222 192 88 1742 145

Bags of Litter 
Picked Up 210 186 231 232 204 206 253 212 261 239 244 216 2694 225

*Adoption of 160D has allowed all Site Plans & Subdivisions to be 
reviewed at staff level no longer needing Planning/City Council 

review. Monthy report updated to reflect current process.

Planning Dept.

Code Enforcement 

*Adoption of 160D changed Conditional Use permits to Special Use 
permits. These were not previously reported. Monthy report 

updated to reflect current process.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
October 2022 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  November 3, 2022  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for October 2022 were 211, compared to 133 for October 2021. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $246,994 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $115,006 was recovered. 
 
Officers arrested 99 people and issued 252 citations during the month. There were 24 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 3 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1  2 0 0 2  0 0  1  0     6 0.6 
Rape 1 2  1  3 1 1   1 1        2  0     13 1.3 
Robbery 1 2     6  3 5 3  8 2 2  2     34 3.4 
Aggravated Assault 11 12  20  31 27  20  20  19 25   16     201 20.1 
Breaking & Entering 25 19  18  26 19  28  24  16    24  17     216 21.6 
Larceny 92 86        95 118 94  117  106  127 103  162     1100 110 
Motor Vehicle Theft 6  6 7   5 15  21 9 7     9  14     99 9.9 
Arson 0 1 0   1  0  0  0 0 0  0     2 0.2 
TOTALS 136 129 149  187  161  192  168  172 166  211     1671 167.1 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1  1  0  0 6 0.5 
Rape 3 0 1 2 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 12 1.0 
Robbery 7 3 2 1 8 3 5 4 1 5 0 1 40 3.3 
Aggravated Assault 10 11 10 24 12 13 15 18 16 9 18 8 164 13.6 
Breaking & Entering 26 19 18 30 25 34 21 23 15 12 16 17 256 21.3 
Larceny 88 70 87 83 114 90 90 116 99 96 92 119 1144 95.3 
Motor Vehicle Theft 8 9 5 7 11 10 7 7 12 7 6 8 97 8.1 
Arson 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 3 0.3 
TOTALS 143 112 124 147 172 151 140 169 144 133 133 154 1722 143.4 

 

 
Revenue collected for October 2022 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

 172.00  
 Fingerprints   $      90.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $     100.0  
             Total     $   362.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
October 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: November 14, 2022 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o Completion of sealing and painting clear well #2 at the water Plant. Flood Barriers footer 

work should start in November. Currently working on the replacements for the ATSs at the 
WTP and at the NRPS. 

o Footers for flood barriers work will begin in November. 
o WTP all Operators are Certified at this time. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing normal since September 

2021. The average daily flow for October is 6.99-MGD. The yearly average flow for the city is 7.83-
MG. This puts the WRF at 55% capacity. 

o All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
o Working on bids for the bar screen at New Hope. 
o Remote communication with the obsolete telemetry system continues to be prepared for 

an upgrade. Working with the Procurement section on getting this work done.  
o Currently there are 3 uncertified operators who will be testing in December. 
o One vacant position. 

Compost Facility 
• Six hundred and nineteen cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in October 2022. 

 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. The results for October are estimated, due to all the results are not in 
for the month. 
 

2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97   5.914 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99   7.83 
Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619   603 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2021 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.878 6.348 6.000 5.996 6.619 6.066 6.149 5.872 5.854 5.660 5.70 5.64 5.981 
Sewer** 16.73 19.28 14.68 10.97 8.61 12.99 12.74 12.44 7.98 7.00 6.52 6.69 11.38 
Compost 297 109 733 1406 902 529 286 133 283 76 472 127 420 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 14.3

2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 3.4

33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 25.5

20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 17.2

2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 6.0

12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 11.0

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 40.2

32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 61.4

0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 96.7

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 236.3

49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     112$     111$     98$       93$       87.8

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 1.011

20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 25.4

0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.527

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 3.4

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 15.4

65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 44.6

78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 153.0

0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.424

0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 14.799

6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 3.0

4.5 11.4 2.3 14.9 5.4 13.1 4.5 7.2 2.3 12.3 9 12.1 8.3
8.6 6.6 3.6 2.3 3.1 2.0 1.0 2.4 15.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 4.0
17 27 22 22 21 17 20 24 26 37 35 24 24.3
18 11 13 27 14 13 17 18 18 21 9 10 15.8
9 4 6 8 4 3 1 2 6 2 3 6 4.5
18 14 12 28 34 27 18 26 22 18 16 24 21.4

52 45 44 42 40 41 46 47 35 52 46 51 45.1

0 0 60 127 95 86.1 98.2 98 144 77.8 43.6 16.5 70.5

0 10 41 94.6 85.4 149.6 126.5 122.9 121 56.2 0 0 67.3

294 288 286 263 243 248 310 280 198 257 224 215 258.8
48$       50$       56$       51$       40$       53$       65$       59$       52$       50$       49$       51$       52.0

0.92 0.91 1.08 1.09 0.93 1.16 1.13 1.22 0.99 0.97 0.98 1.01 1.0
97 82 89 94 81 97 58 38 12 7 20 58.04 61.2
0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5 1.0 0.6

11 1 8 4 7 4 6 5 5 7 2 3 5.3

0 5 30 31 26 19 6 8 11 10 6 14 13.8
83 65 39 65 18 34 57 39 23 45 30 74 47.7
175 81 120.8 178 117 135 137 125 101.8 76.6 92.9 107.1 120.6
17.33 0.84 2.16 0.00 1.44 3.05 0.00 0.82 0.00 0.20 0.46 0.00 2.2
14.00 0.48 0.00 0.28 12.82 14.02 0.18 1.17 9.45 7.25 0.00 0.00 5.0
1 3 2 4 5 6 9 2 2 3 3 3 3.6

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage
Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 

Waste
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 

St
o

rm

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2022

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department

October 2022
Prepared by:  Rick Fletcher

Date Prepared: 10 November 2022

2021

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Multiple electrical, plumbing, structural, etc. repairs Citywide; Assisted w/landscape project at City Hall; 
Lights-up preparations - checked/repalaced GFCI outlets, hung Christmas lights, relamped water tower, etc.; resolved several 
electrical issues at City Hall and TC Coley; Assisted with DGDC with art removal and installation on Center Street, Fitness N ights, 
Movie Nights, Taste of Wayne, etc. 

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 17 after hour calls--total of 27.5 hours; Completed 153 work orders. 

Streets & Stormwater: Storm Waterc - Cut/Maintained 13 open Ditches Totaling 20,045 LF; Removel & Clean-up 11 Trees at Coty 
hall and on Center Street; Hauled 32 Tons Sweeping Debris to Landfill; Streets Department - Pouring Concrete Pads for DGDC Art 
Work on Center St; Completed 37 feet of Curb and 42 feet  of Sidewalk.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
October 2022 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 11/09/22 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of October by the TTO—892 e-inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in September was $2,231,663, which is up 14.0% YOY. October revenue not 

yet released. 

● For the month of September, new sessions increased 2.17% compared to the previous month. The average 

session duration increased 15.85% compared to the previous year. Site visibility increased to 14.36% this 

month. The keyword "historic sites in North Carolina" increased in ranking by 10 positions. September SEO 

report not yet released. 

● Travel Blogger Liz Mays posted a story on her blog about the Goldsboro Ghost Tour 

● Co-hosted USTA Player’s Party with Parks & Recreation 

● Attended NC Sports Association meeting in Rocky Mount 

 

 

           August occupancy tax collections have not been released. 

City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264         $364,788 $91,197 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $71,272 $83,367 $84,805 $91,505 $939,388 $78,282 

               

               

               
 
 



Q

Removed







H

Moved to Items Requiring 
Individual Action 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 111

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT

FOR THE PURCHASE OF LITHIUM POWERED GOLF CARTS AND UPGRADING CART

STORAGE BUILDING

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro currently owns 50 E -Z -GO gas powered golf carts purchased
in 2018; and

WHEREAS, due to wear and tear it is time to replace the golf carts; and

WHEREAS, § 143- 129( e)( 3) grants the City authority to purchase through a competitive bidding
group and E -Z -GO is the authorized distributor for Omnia Partners contract # R210201; and

WHEREAS, The City is authorized through § 160A- 265 to sell or dispose of personal property; and

WHEREAS, The City is authorized through § 143- 129. 7 to purchase with trade- in of apparatus, 

supplies, materials and equipment; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro intends to purchase 50 lithium powered golf carts to replace
the current gas powered golf carts; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro will use the trade in value of its current golf carts towards the
purchase of the lithium powered golf carts; and

WHEREAS, after trade in, the cooperative contract price for the purchase of 50 lithium powered
golf carts is $250, 568. 14; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro will also upgrade the golf cart storage building to house the 50
lithium powered golf carts at a cost no to exceed $ 15, 000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. City Council declares surplus the current City fleet of golf carts, and the City Manager, 
Finance Director and City Clerk be and are hereby authorized to execute an agreement with
E -Z -Go Division of Textron, Inc. for the purchase of 50 lithium powered golf carts with

trade- ins and upgrade cart storage building to house the golf carts. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this the
21St

day of
November, 2022. 

avid Ilarn, Mayor

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cl



I

Moved to Items Requiring 
Individual Action 



O .

fl

b

a) 

t-- 

cc

c 

o

CJ

0

O

b

O

yy ¢ 

cd cd

r° 

U

y

o. 

z

O ° '.. 

o

F" 

P

y

0

3

O ; 

Con =

a 

o

a'"

i

r 

n

a 

p

3

0

zU > 

b

a 

4 

Q

N

a3> 

w =-

0

w

0. 

o

1

0

U

U

0 

5

Q)

o

0

p

U

Q

N

4y

4r

O " }-' 

U

El

i .- 

y

to

N —" 
f-, 

Cut

N

Q 

N

b " 

U` 

O

0 .

4 =" 

v. 

U

co

U

U

w

O " 

O +' 

N '• •   

O

03

o> 

o

ami

ZCO
cq3

cz

cd

oda

to

as

ti 

UU

ww

w °  

m

cd

w

O

O

O

Oma' 

dU
U

ao

w

M.

t.," 

N

om.-, 

cn

cl

fwd

4

0

w

a
0

0

U

U  

O •  . '.

yam-. 

i" 

f "  

Vi +.. 

cc
0

0

0

6

C5U
y

t

Lo

w

cV

cCCV

mv

o
GV

CD

A

Ga

G091

Y9- 

GG- 

60) 

GOD

O

m

00

o

0

o

m1-
4

0000000-
1

00

C

00
0

L". 

o000000c 

o

N

o

c

N

oLn* 
U 

L6

cfs

6

ec

6

N

c

eo

Co

moo

y

oo0
mcc

0
c0
om

NN
mm

oNotO=
m

NmLaxm=
00

C ,-

i

L

C 

C 

o

co

cc

of

cli

cli

06
C

0

06
d

q

ell

LOr-
q

00

C

Ncq

mONr-
qmmNa 

Q

cc

cq

m

00

00

00

10

o

v

mr-
i

or -
i

m

EfS

U

E

t-: 

c

Cc

C6

E

19

I

E0

EA

Ff3

6F} 

EA

99- 

400
00

00

O

O

O

m

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

d

d' 

O

O

O

N

N

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

GV

CV

CV

C

16

4-
3

L6

VS

LN

L6

CD

6

N

C

CD

C6

m

m

O

CD

O

N

N

Co

N

CG

N

CV

O== 

m

m

m

m

N

m

UM

00

m

m

m

U

crJ

m

r
i

m

m

CG

Co

m

CV

CV

00

m

O
0

GV

z+ 

GV

N

L

CV

CV

00

O

N .-

4

00

m

cV

m

O

O

O

O

00

LO

O

m .-+ 

O-

4

m

r

U

H

C6

t6

Cfl

C6It
r•• 

61

Ef3

FA

y} 

Ef} 

GAI

y

t

CDO

m

0

U5

0

C

y

00

L". 

L' 

Cd

O

y

F 

W

w

m

O

eq

M

O

w

cv

q

sc

a 

aye

W

U

cV
cq

U

U4.
4

W

VI

CV

W

W

t 

P'- 

ii

y

d0

v

S

1+ 

O

O

Cd >

a

O

C

cd

cz

U

d .-, 

Cd ." 

y

EfS

U

E

F

1PdUUrl 
E

E

19

I

E0



WWAL

O
O

O
OOd" o

0

0

00

0

m

m

C7 .-

a

N
CV
O

ER
o

O

oCYDo
C6
1

t- 

00

GV

m

ff} 

O
O

LO
OO8111

00000
O

O

O

O

O

00

C -

4

O

O

00

O

N

O

O

m

O

O

d

CV

re
O . 

1

CEJ

O

O

cV

Iq

Ci

0

0

0

0

l

O

O

L

O

O

C'

rJ

CrJ

O

0

CV

Cll

T
1

4
d

GD

O

LO00

Nt- 

O

O

C*

J603

mez000O
Oco000OL6cli0000

t- 

o

0

0

0

0m00000
cli

C6

L6

6
o

O

O

V

m

O

O 

M

1-

4

GO -

4

O

CV

CrJeD

H311

GOD- 

M11,

11

9

M11

0 " 

m

C,

4

cl

oo -

4

60311

603Lo
1-

4

MI-: 

L

COV

Od

N

O

Gp

O

COV

CSV

CV

CV

6H

603

601, 00cqC 

o "' 

OC) 

CIO  

4

O

cV

O

CV

CEJ

cV

N

60311

6031
603

O(

DO00cq
O

O

O " 

t- 

6C

GO

O

C7 .-

i

O

CV

O

00

CV

cV

O

CV

C".) 

CYJ -

4

O
L- 

O

C4CV

603

0000cV
O

O

O

O

t- 

6

06

6

6 -

4

60666-
4

cqoo 
4"

o-

4

m

r

O

O

CVCV

Eii

0cqC6CV

CNVCSV D

1~ 

O
CSV

U

OCSV

czO

m

d

pUjp

y

7.

4

E" 

4
d

Cd

CD

d

dD

d

G4

a

o

o

a

a

n

a

U

d

o

4

o

d

b

a

a° 

d 

o

w

q

O

CJ

C " ' 

O

C' 

y

Wv

z

U] 

Cw 

CV

W

d

W

X 4W

au
0r. ° 

d 

Cd

a

z

o 

tz

z

d0
zD

Z

I

F 

F

FF
N



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 11 ? 1 - 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION

FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY CHARLES GINN

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

FOR MORE THAN 18 YEARS

WHEREAS, Charles Ginn retires on December 1, 2022 as a Stormwater Maintenance Supervisor, with

more than 18 years of service, with the Goldsboro Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, Charles began his career on January 7, 2004 as a Utility Maintenance I with the Goldsboro
Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on May 25, 2005, Charles was promoted to Acting Motor Equipment Operator III with the
Goldsboro Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on October 26, 2005, Charles was promoted to Motor Equipment Operator III with the
Goldsboro Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2007, Charles was reclassified to Equipment Operator III with the Goldsboro
Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on January 8, 2014, Charles was reclassified to Heavy Equipment Operator with the
Goldsboro Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2018, Charles was promoted to Interim Stormwater Maintenance Supervisor with
the Goldsboro Public Works Department; 

WHEREAS, on October 24, 2018, Charles was promoted to Stormwater Maintenance Supervisor with the
Goldsboro Public Works Department, where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, Charles has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the

admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, 
City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Charles Ginn their deep appreciation
and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that we express to Charles our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health
in his future endeavors. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force
and effect from and after this 21" day of November, 2022. 

Attested by: 

fo- X-t 
Laura Getz, City Cler

ba-VITHa, Mayor


	Agenda 11-21-22
	ws item a - Goldsboro Council Presentation Powerpoint
	Board Presentation- Preliminary Audit Results
	Audit Matters
	General Fund – Fund Balance Summary	
	General Fund – Fund Balance Summary	
	Utility Fund
	Utility Fund
	Compliance Reporting
	Questions?

	ws item b - FY 21-22 Financial Update 11-07-22_3 (CFG 10-31-22)
	Slide Number 1
	General Fund – Collections�Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)
	General Fund Collections�     FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual
	Stormwater Fund – Collections�Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)�and�Budget to Actual FY2021-22
	Utility Fund – Collections�Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)
	Utility Fund Collections�FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual
	Downtown MSD & �Occupancy Tax Collections �Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)
	Downtown MSD & �Occupancy Tax Collections�FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual
	    Actual Collections	�Comparison Actual Current & Prior (unaudited)
	Summary – �FY2021-22 Budget to Actual Expenditures 
	     Fund Balance Appropriations�    FY 2021-22
	FY2021-22 Net Operating Results�(Modified Accrual - unaudited)
	 

	ws item c - Item - Agenda Memo 2022-21 Draft Capital reserve
	ws item d - GTC Council Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	How Occupancy Tax Works
	Tourism at a Glance for FY21-22
	Tourism Event Highlights FY 21-22
	Tourism in FY22-23

	ws Item e - CCRD Report
	Commission on Community Relations and Development ��
	Our Mission���
	Our Members
	2022 Accomplishments
	What does 2023 look like?
	Thank the City Council, City Manager and the Mayor for trusting us and allowing us latitude to continue to serve the communities and City of Goldsboro.

	ws item f - HPC & TCCC
	Item A Minutes 11-07-22
	Item B - Minutes (Joint Meeting) 11-1-22
	MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL, WAYNE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AND LOCAL MUNICIPALITIES
	NOVEMBER 1, 2022
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Joint Meeting with the Wayne County Commissioners and local municipalities at the Maxwell Center, 3114 Wayne Memorial Drive, at 12 p.m. on November 1, 2022.
	Present: Mayor David Ham
	Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones
	Councilman Bill Broadaway
	Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV
	Councilman Greg Batts

	Item C - Thomas Bailey Retirement RES
	Item D1 - HOME-ARP Allocation Planning 11162022
	Item E - SU-13-22 PH Agenda Memo (FINAL)
	Item F - SU-14-22 signed
	Item G - SU-15-22 PH Agenda Memo (FINAL)
	Item H - Golf Carts
	Item I - Agenda 2022-11-14 Operating Amendment GF UF_1
	Agenda Memo GF UF Amend 11-21-22_1
	ORDINANCE Op Amend 2022-11-21_1

	Item J - Sale  of Joint Property
	Item K - JAG Item
	Item L - ORD Amend - PD
	Item M - Golsboro Christmas Parade
	Item N - PDF Agenda Packet Non Contiguous Satellite Annexation Set Public Hearing November 21 2022
	Item O - Dissolve golf course
	Item P - Monthly Departmental Reports - October
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	HR MonthlyRpt_October
	inspections MoRepOct2022
	Police Monthly Report October  2022
	Cash & Investment FY2023-04-Oct.pdf
	10-31-22

	Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2022-10- OCT.pdf
	Grants 2022-09 October

	Budget Transfers Summary FY23_1 2022-04 OCT.pdf
	Transfer Summary Oct


	Item Q1 - Panhandling
	Item Q2 - Panhandling
	Item R - Charles Ginn Retirement RES



